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REPORTS THROUGH GENERAL MANAGER 

 

REPORTS FROM THE GENERAL MANAGER 

O1 [GM-OC] World Rally Championships  
 
ORIGIN: 

General Manager 
 
FILE NO: Festivals – World Rally Championships 
 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: 

Council has received a letter from the Confederation of Australian Motor Sports (CAMS) 
inviting the General Manager to be a Director of World Rally Australia Pty Ltd.  This 
company is wholly owned by CAMS and has been established to conduct the World 
Rally Championships in Australia.  Other Board members will include representatives of 
CAMS, Events NSW and NSW business representatives. 
 
Given the potential economic benefits to the region it is likely that there would be some 
significant advantage in the Tweed being represented at Board level. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

That Council authorises the General Manager to accept the offer from the 
Confederation of Australian Motor Sports to be a Director of World Rally 
Australia Pty Ltd. 



 
OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING DATE:  TUESDAY 18 NOVEMBER 2008 

 
 

 
PAGE 6 

 
REPORT: 

Council has received a letter from the Confederation of Australian Motor Sports (CAMS) 
inviting the General Manager to be a Director of World Rally Australia Pty Ltd.  This 
company is wholly owned by CAMS and has been established to conduct the World 
Rally Championships in Australia.  Other Board members will include representatives of 
CAMS, Events NSW and NSW business representatives. 
 
Given the potential economic benefits to the region it is likely that there would be some 
significant advantage in the Tweed being represented at Board level. 
 
A copy of the CAMS letter to Council is reproduced below. 
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LEGAL/RESOURCE/FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
UNDER SEPARATE COVER: 

Nil. 
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O2 [GM-OC] Tweed Economic Development Corporation (TEDC) Quarterly 
Performance Report - July to September 2008  

 
ORIGIN: 

Business & Economic Development 
 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: 

As required by the current Tweed Economic Development Corporation (TEDC) 
Agreement a quarterly performance report and financial statement is to be provided for 
Council’s review.  Below is TEDC’s Performance Report for the quarter 1 July to 30 
September 2008.  All financial information has been provided as a confidential 
attachment due to the commercial nature of its contents.   
 
Attached to this report is a copy of the TEDC’s Business Plan which was submitted to 
Council in September.  This plan outlines the status of all of TEDC’s projects. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

That Council receives and notes the quarterly report from Tweed Economic 
Development Corporation for the quarter July to September 2008. 
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REPORT: 

TWEED ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION LTD 
QUARTERLY REPORT TO TWEED SHIRE COUNCIL 
July to September 2008 
 
1. Employment Generating Lands – Master Planned Estates (MPE) – Planning 

Study 
 
� TSC approached TEDC to undertake an investigation, and compile an advisory 

report into Master Planned Estates in the Tweed, in collaboration with council, in 
preparation of new planning policies for master planned estates. 

� This proposal by TSC was suggested as part of the activities to be carried out by 
TEDC as part of its 2008 business plan. The proposed report is to be completed by 
December 2008.  

� The Draft Document has been completed, and forwarded to TSC/TEDC Director 
Vince Connell.  

� TEDC has organized a presentation to TSC staff on Master Planned Communities 
by Peter Sippel TEDC Director, and Director of The Heilbron Group.  

� A meeting between TSC and TEDC to discuss the report and its recommendations 
will follow the presentation by Peter Sippel.  

� The importance of this study and its ultimate implementation cannot be over 
emphasised in terms of the job generating investment attraction objectives of 
TEDC. 

� TEDC has established the need to generate up to 25,000 new jobs by 2031 as part 
of addressing population growth/demographics and also achieving a 50% work 
participation rate. (Current work participation rate for Tweed at 42% compared with 
Hunter Valley at 59%, SEQ/Gold Coast at 62.7% and Sydney at 69%. 

 
2. Telecommunications Infrastructure Action Plan 
 
� TSC approached TEDC to conduct research and prepare an action plan to provide 

direction and advice to council on how to provide better telecommunications 
infrastructure for the Tweed. 

� TEDC has conducted significant research on approaches to the broadband 
connectivity issues by other regions across Australia including projects in 
Melbourne, Sydney and Brisbane. TEDC has also met with a range of relevant 
industry experts, including meetings with Telstra, Pivit, and Delfin Lend Lease 
(which included an inspection of the Varsity Lakes project), and meetings with other 
relevant industry experts.  

� A Stage 1. Draft Overview/Summary Research Report, has been completed by 
TEDC, and forwarded to TSC for discussion. 

� TEDC also met with GDI Consulting, who have previously been commissioned by 
SEQ Council of Mayors to prepare an action plan for their region. GDI have also 
completed a range of action plans for Queensland State Government and Brisbane 
City Council.  
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� Subsequent to discussions with GDI, it was decided to seek a quote from GDI 
which would provide input into the Final TEDC Report by providing the information 
necessary to complete the Implementation Phase of the Action Plan, based on the 
commercial and practical experience and expertise of GDI in this field. A quote has 
since been received for $18,000.00  

� This Project has the capacity to facilitate job generation generally, through 
investment and industry attraction, but also by its capacity to encourage growth of 
home based businesses in the existing residential and industrial/commercial areas.  

� It is expected that the report will proposes that all new residential and employment 
generating land development initiatives in the Tweed, include the latest fibre-optic 
internet/broad band technology infrastructure as part of the basic infrastructure 
requirement process.  

� The Draft TEDC Report and the GDI submission were discussed at a meeting on 
Friday October 24th, with Troy Green Dir Technology & Corporate Services, and 
Mark Tickle of TSC, who endorsed the approach taken by TEDC including the 
endorsement of the GDI consultancy proposal. 

� The project and the GDI Proposal will be discussed at the TEDC Board meeting of 
October 30th 2008 

� The issue and importance of appropriate broadband access is best summarized in 
a document which identified The Top Seven Intelligent Communities of 2008 
(Globally) – Published on 14th January 2008. It makes for interesting reading. It can 
be downloaded from  www.intelligentcommunity.org 

 
3. Tourism ROI Update 
 
� The uploading of information onto the Tourism ROI web site has been completed 

and we are now attempting to monitor development, progress and general feedback 
on the performance of the site.  

 
4. Environmental Resource Education Centre Preliminary Feasibility Research 

Project  
 
� TEDC were invited to be part of a TSC steering committee to look at establishing an 

Environmental Resource Education Centre in the Tweed 
� TEDC offered to undertake a preliminary feasibility/scoping research project as part 

of developing an understanding of the opportunity and challenges presented by 
such a proposal, including providing examples of similar facilities in Australia and 
overseas. 

�  A first draft document is nearing completion and will be presented to the steering 
committee on completion.  

 
5. TEDC Economic Model Update 
 
� TEDC has not as yet resolved the issues associated with updating the Tweed 

Transaction Tables and negotiations are continuing with a number of parties 
including, Professor Guy West & the Western Research Institute 

� TEDC has also arranged a meeting with Professor Christine Smith, Head of the 
Department of Accountancy, Finance and Economics, Griffith University. 

� The economic impact assessment project for Lismore City Council was delayed due 
to staff changes at Lismore. This project has now been completed.  

http://www.intelligentcommunity.org/
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� The Richmond Valley Council Tables update has now been completed.  
� The Richmond Valley Economic Impact consultancy project has commenced.  
� As a matter of interest, TEDC consultancy work using the modelling tool has 

resulted in a gross income to TEDC in the last financial year of $41,127.00. 
� Tweed Shire Holiday Park economic impact assessment completed.  
 
6. TEDC AGM & Dinner Presentation by Tony Pearson. 
 
� Plans for this event are well underway and TEDC has been successful in attracting 

major sponsorship for the event with Gold Coast Airport being the Major Sponsor 
($2,500.00) and 6 other sponsors contributing $1,000.00 each. These include 
Industry Central (2 packages -$2,000.00), Mt Warning Industrial Park, North Coast 
TAFE, TURSA  & Northern Rivers Regional Development Board. 

� TEDC has sent out 200 direct invitations, including invitations to all councillors and 
GM’s of all Northern Rivers Councils as well as representatives from Gold Coast 
City Council, and other representatives of the TEDC data base and broader 
business community. Invitations have also been extended via the extensive TEDC 
Web Data base. 

� There will be several weeks of media exposure leading up to the event, with ads in 
the Gold Coast Bulletin, Daily News, Tweed Border Mail, Gold Coast Mail and 
Northern Star and other local publications as well as the TEDC web site, all  inviting 
the local and regional business community to attend the dinner presentation. 

� We expect this event to be well attended and the venue can accommodate up to 
200 people although numbers are hard to predict at this early stage. 

� The TEDC AGM will precede the dinner event. 
� Tony Pearson is the Deputy Chief Economist with the ANZ bank and will speak on 

the state of the national and global economy. 
 
7. Other TEDC Activities  
 
� Thursday October 2nd TEDC attended Gold Coast Airport Jet Star Flights to Japan 

and Tokyo official welcome of first flight and project launch.  
� EDO Krystal Baker attended EDA Conference in Brisbane on October 8th & 9th.  
� TEDC representatives continue to attend the “Tweed” Chamber’s breakfast 

meetings. 
� TEDC CEO continues to attend the Murwillumbah Hospital Community Action 

Group meetings in an advisory capacity.  
� TEDC was represented at the Northern Rivers Regional Development Board 

Awards for Innovation in Lismore on July 7th  
� On Wednesday July 16th TEDC met with representatives from the Pilbara in WA 

who visited the Tweed and SEQ regions as part of a fact finding mission. The 
representatives advised they are still interested in accessing the economic 
modelling expertise offered by TEDC. 

� Meeting with Representatives of the ANZ Bank including Regional Managers 
� Attended Westlawn Finance Launch Murwillumbah. 
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8. Commonwealth Games Proposal 
 
� A proposal for the Tweed to lend its support to the Gold Coast/SEQ application to 

host the Commonwealth Games has been forwarded to Gold Coast City Council. 
� There are a number of sporting venues in the Tweed Shire which have been used 

in the past by international teams as training venues. The support for the Gold 
Coast application is seen as an opportunity to value add to the Tweed economy by 
offering to support the Gold Coast in hosting of this event, through the provision of 
sporting venues. 

 
9. Tweed Employment Generating Land 
 
� TEDC continues to deal with inquiries from interested parties on the establishment 

of business in the Tweed with the majority of inquiries relating to industrial land. 
(Industry Central in particular) 

� TEDC is also part of discussions with private enterprise interests regarding the 
identification and development of master planned estates in the Tweed. 

� TEDC continues to work with representatives of a number of employment 
generating estates in the Tweed, by providing data and statistics as well as 
facilitating business enquiries. These projects include proposals at Chinderah, 
Murwillumbah and Pottsville. 

� Construction has either commenced or is about to commence on a number of 
buildings in Industry Central and include; Williams River Steel, Bunnings, 
Scandinavian Cone Company, Rhino Linings and at least 2 other major buildings 
for lease.  

 
10. TEDC and Tweed Tourism Discussions Update 
 
� Discussions between TEDC and Tweed Tourism continue to be held regarding joint 

marketing approach by both organizations through the development of a common 
Tweed Brand and other joint marketing initiatives. 

� As of August 2008 the CEO of TEDC and the General Manager of Tweed Tourism 
attend the board meetings of both organisations in a non voting capacity.  

� TEDC attended the Tourism Property Market Research Presentation for Salt Village 
Resorts presented by Colleen Coyne, Property Research analyst.  

 
11. Quarterly Meeting TSC 
 
� In accordance with the TEDC business plan, an update of TEDC current and 

proposed activities were discussed, and the following resolved; 
� That the TEDC business plan be amended to reflect the two projects assigned to 

TEDC by TSC, namely; The Planning Study & the Telecommunications Study. 
� That Rural Land Use Stage 2, be put on hold due to the current workload at TEDC 

and in view of the uncertainty of being able to access Federal Government Funding 
at this time. 
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12. TEDC Promotions / Publications  
 
� TEDC has agreed to take a half page ad in the Northern Rivers Business Magazine 

at a cost of $1,095.00. The Tweed region will be the feature region for the month 
which includes the front page as well as several pages of feature articles on the 
Tweed and TEDC projects and initiatives. 

� TEDC has also been approached by Queensland Business ACUMEN magazine, 
inviting TEDC to be part of the 2008 Year Book publication. The magazine has 
widespread circulation and will focus on: What happened in 2008.  What happens 
next? And who is making it happen – and how.  

� The TEDC Tweed Pulse publication continues to be well received and in demand 
from potential new businesses and investors. 

� The Tweed Pulse publication has been updated as part of a six monthly review 
process. 

� The TEDC has compiled a publication (The Journey) which outlines some of the 
initiatives, promotions, projects and strategies developed by TEDC from 1997 to 
2008. 

 
LEGAL/RESOURCE/FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
This report recommends Council endorse the quarterly performance review required by 
Tweed Economic Development Corporation’s funding agreement. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
UNDER SEPARATE COVER: 

1. Confidential Attachment - September 2008 Quarter Balance Sheet and Profit and 
Loss Statements (DW: 1923401) 

2. Confidential Attachment - Tweed Economic Development Corporation Business 
Plan (DW: 1897450) 
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O3 [GM-OC] Tweed Tourism Quarterly Performance Report – July to 
September 2008  

 
ORIGIN: 

Business & Economic Development 
 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: 

As required by the current agreement between Tweed Tourism and Council a quarterly 
performance report and summary financial statement are to be provided for Council’s 
review.  This report provides the Tweed Tourism’s Quarterly Reports for the quarter 1 
July to 30 September 2008.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

That Council endorses the Tweed Tourism Quarterly Report for the quarter 
July to September 2008. 
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REPORT: 
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LEGAL/RESOURCE/FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
UNDER SEPARATE COVER: 

1. Confidential Attachment - Tweed Tourism Sept Qtr 2008 Report to Council - 
Financial Confidential Attachment (DW 1922767) 
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REPORTS FROM THE DIRECTOR TECHNOLOGY & CORPORATE SERVICES 

O4 [TCS-OC] Quarterly Budget Review - 30 September 2008  
 
ORIGIN: 

Financial Services 
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: 

This is the first quarter statutory budget review for this financial year and summarises the 
estimated expenditure and income changes to the 2008/09 Budget based on projections 
to 30 June 2009. 
 
This statutory report is prepared in accordance with the Local Government (General) 
Regulations 2005, regulation 202 and 203. Council will have a balanced budget as at 30 
June 2009 in the General Fund, Water and Sewer Funds.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

That the:- 
 
1. Quarterly Budget Review Statement as at 30 September 2008 be 

adopted. 
 
2. Expenditure and income, as summarised below and detailed within 

the report, be voted and adjusted in accordance with the revised total 
expenditure and income for the year ending 30 June 2009. 
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Description Change to Vote 
 Deficit Surplus 
General Fund   
Expenses   
Operating 2,748,066 0  
Interest 0 5,250  
Capital 4,187,932 0  
Loan Repayments 0 4,948  
Transfers to Reserves 0 0  
 6,935,998 10,198  
Income 0 0  
Operating 0 2,791,438  
Capital Grants & Conts 0 965,500  
Loan Funds 70,000 0  
Recoupments 0 2,348,425  
Transfers from Reserves 0 890,437  
Asset Sales 0 0  
 70,000 6,995,800  
   
Net Surplus/(Deficit)  0  
   

Description Change to Vote 
 Deficit Surplus 
Water Fund   
Expenses   
Operating 62,687 0  
Interest 0 1,179,320  
Capital 0 3,407,475  
Loan Repayments 0 237,619  
Transfers to Reserves 188,766 0  
 251,453 4,824,414  
Income   
Operating 0 0  
Capital Grants & Conts 100,000 0  
Loan Funds 2,625,000 0  
Recoupments 1,407,527 0  
Transfers from Reserves 440,434 0  
 4,572,961 0  
   
Net Surplus/(Deficit)  0  
   
Sewer Fund   
Expenses   
Operating 316,230 0  
Interest 0 0  
Capital 0 1,127,395  
Loan Repayments 0 0  
Transfers to Reserves 0 908,335  
 316,230 2,035,730  
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Income   
Operating 0 0  
Capital Grants & Conts 280,000 0  
Loan Funds 0 0  
Recoupments 743,000 0  
Transfers from Reserves 696,500 0  
Asset Sales 0 0  
 1,719,500 0  
   
Net Surplus/(Deficit)  0  
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REPORT: 

Budget Review 30 September 2008 (Quarterly Budget Review) 
 
In accordance with regulation 203(1) of the Local Government (General) Regulation 
2005, a Budget Review Statement and revision of the estimates of income and 
expenditure must be submitted to council within two months of the close of each quarter. 
 
The Regulation requires that the quarterly financial review must include the following: 
 
• A revised estimate for income and expenditure for the year. 
 
• A report as to whether or not such statements indicate that the financial position of 

the Council is satisfactory and if the position is unsatisfactory, make 
recommendations for remedial action. 

 
Report by Responsible Accounting Officer 
 
The Quarterly Budget Review Reports are prepared to provide Council and the 
community with information in relation to Councils financial performance and proposed 
amendments to its budget and forward estimates. The reports are prepared under 
accrual accounting principles in accordance with the requirements of the Local 
Government Act 1993. 
 
The Financial reports included in the Quarterly Budget Review are as follows: 
 
1. Variations 

a) Variations Proposed 
b) Introduced During Quarter – By Council Resolution 

 
2. Budget Summary – by fund 

a) By Type (including Available Working Capital) 
b) By Division 

 
Variations 
 
There are two variations reports included in the Quarterly Budget Review during this 
quarter: 
 
• Variations Proposed 
• Council Resolutions 
 
The Variations Proposed report details all of the recommended changes to budget that 
have been put forward by management at this review for Councils consideration. 
 
The Council Resolutions report is provided as information to the Council and the 
community to explain the adjustments that have been included in the Approved Budget 
during the quarter. 
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Income Statement  
 
The Income Statement measures Council’s financial performance over the period and 
shows whether or not Council has earned sufficient revenues to support its activities 
during that period, and whether or not surpluses have been created to fund additional or 
replacement assets to service community needs. 
 
The statements show where Council’s money comes from (Revenue) and how that 
revenue is consumed (Expenses) in providing the ordinary activities and services of the 
Council.  
 
Statement of Funding Result Reconciliation 
 
The Funding Statement provides information about the source of cash and “cash like” 
funds, and how they have been (or are budgeted to be) applied in the Management Plan.  
 
The “source” of funds includes the surplus or deficit (a negative source) from ordinary 
activities of Council as expressed in the Income Statement. In other words all of the 
ordinary activities of Council including collection of rates and other general income and 
provision of services are netted off and the remainder is available to provide a source of 
funds for other expenditure such as asset acquisition, loan repayments and transfer to 
reserve for future expenditure programs. 
 
The programs that have had an effect on revenue are:- 
 
Description $ Comments 
  
General Fund  
L G Association Membership 5,000 Increased Membership Costs 

Community Options programs expenses 57,238 
Expenditure of interest on unexpended 
grants 07/08 

Financial Assistance Grant - General (385,981) Additional funds received 

Roads construction loan repayments (10,198)
Savings from replacing proposed 
borrowing with additional grant funds 

Visitor information centre Tweed Heads 150,000 Additional funds required 
Development Assessment legal expenses 150,000 Ongoing expenses with appeals 

Design Unit legal expenses 28,941 
Legal expenses for leases and general 
legal advice/research 

Mayor & Councillor expenses 5,000 Council conduct review committee 
   
 0  
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Full details: 
 

Item In/Ex Description 
 Current 

Vote 
Change to 

Vote   Comments 
       

 1. Proposed Variations     
  General     
1 Ex Depot expenses 109,800 310,000  adjust to reflect actual 
1 Ex Storekeeping 220,000 80,000  adjust to reflect actual 
1 Ex Depot on costs 0 (390,000)  adjust to reflect actual 
2 Ex Building Control other costs 104,643 5,000  Journals and education 
2 Ex Water & food sample testing 10,000 (5,000)  Internal reallocation for above 
3 Ex Kyogle Rd - Palmers Rd to Clarrie Hall Dam 2,231,775  Project not in original budget 
3 In s94 Recoupment Plan 4  (2,231,775)  Funding from above 
4 Ex L G Association Membership 40,163 5,000  Increased Membership Costs 
5 Ex Community Options programs expenses 2,038,821 994,542  Adjust to reflect projected grant expenses 
5 In Community Options programs income (1,937,931) (937,304)  Adjust to reflect projected grant income 
6 Ex Recreation services administration 624,544 142,522  Internal restructuring Rec Services 
6 Ex Maintenance - general 277,254 (142,522)  Internal restructuring Rec Services 
7 Ex Maintenance - general 277,254 (130,000)  Redistribution of Rec Services budget 
7 Ex Maintenance - Tweed 691,440 90,000  Redistribution of Rec Services budget 
7 Ex Maintenance - Murwillumbah 583,708 20,000  Redistribution of Rec Services budget 
7 Ex Maintenance - Koala Beach 64,679 20,000  Redistribution of Rec Services budget 
8 Ex Public halls 86,302 (47,540)  Disbursement of budgets to individual halls 
8 Ex Other Property 99,460 (2,545)  Disbursement of budgets to individual halls 
8 Ex Halls (various) 0 50,085  Disbursement of budgets to individual halls 
9 Ex Water Quality Control 31,251 (31,251)  Consolidation of entomology budgets 
9 Ex Insect & Vermin Control 125,407 31,251  Consolidation of entomology budgets 
10 In Financial Assistance Grant - General (5,702,449) (385,981)  Advice received from Commission 
10 In Financial Assistance Grant - Roads (1,878,000) (252,810)  Advice received from Commission 
10 Ex FAG Roads expenditure 2,184,762 182,810  Expenditure of above 
10 In Roads funding - loans (570,000) 70,000  Replace borrowing with above 
10 Ex Roads construction loan repayments 221,991 (5,250)  Interest saved by above 
10 Ex Roads construction loan repayments 442,242 (4,948)  Principal repayments saved by above 
11 Ex Recycling expenses 155,220 69,974  Recycled aluminium bin enclosures 
11 In Transfer from Waste reserves (110,450) (69,974)  Transfer above from Recycling reserve 
12 Ex Landfill construction  427,959  Stage 4 Landfill cell Bartlett's Quarry 

12 In Transfer from Waste reserves (110,450) (427,959)  
Transfer above from Landfill Environmental 
Management Reserve 

13 Ex Environmental Assessment Report  357,504  Landfill & Quarry at Eviron Road site 

13 In Transfer from Waste reserves (110,450) (357,504)  Transfer above from various waste reserves 
14 Ex Project Management System  35,000  Hardware, software, travel, training 
14 In Transfer from Car Parking Reserve  (35,000)  Funding for above 

15 Ex Visitor information centre Tweed Heads 341,821 150,000  Additional funds required 
16 Ex Murwillumbah Civic Centre fit-out  113,238  Completion of works 
16 Ex Organisational development 336,505 (113,238)  Funding for above 

17 Ex 
Development Assessment legal 
expenses 199,300 150,000  Ongoing expenses with appeals 

18 Ex Design Unit legal expenses  28,941  
Legal expenses for leases and general legal 
advice/research 

19 Ex Mayor & Councillor expenses 197,354 5,000  Council conduct review committee 
20 Ex Wommin Bay Rd drainage 125,000 474,475  Redistribution of infrastructure program 
20 Ex Wharf St drainage 171,000 (100,000)  Redistribution of infrastructure program 
20 Ex Pottsville Waters Canal drainage 614,475 (614,475)  Redistribution of infrastructure program 
20 Ex Darlington Drive drainage 110,000 240,000  Redistribution of infrastructure program 
21 Ex Piggabeen Road 80,000 100,000  Redistribution of infrastructure program 
21 Ex Wooyung Road 271,881 (100,000)  Redistribution of infrastructure program 
22 Ex Cudgen Creek walkbridge 200,000 100,000  Redistribution of infrastructure program 
22 Ex Giddys Bridge 337,636 200,050  Redistribution of infrastructure program 
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22 Ex Pottsville Bridge 75,000 6,000  Redistribution of infrastructure program 
22 Ex Perch Creek Bridge 291,750 253,950  Redistribution of infrastructure program 
22 Ex O'Briens Bridge 222,908 (166,340)  Redistribution of infrastructure program 
22 Ex Bridge Construction (non-specified) 243,660 (243,660)  Redistribution of infrastructure program 
22 Ex Timber bridge grants (197,500) 197,500  Redistribution of infrastructure program 
22 Ex Crabbes Creek Road 616,245 (347,500)  Redistribution of infrastructure program 
23 Ex Flood damage January 2008 59,857 1,215,343  Grant notifications 
23 In Natural disaster grants  (1,215,343)  Grant notifications 
24 Ex Kyogle Road - Palmers Road  750,000  Grant notifications 
24 Ex Kyogle Road - 3km West of Kunghur  280,000  Grant notifications 
24 Ex Cudgen Rd/Tweed Coast Rd signals  50,000  Grant notifications 
24 Ex Terranora Road  83,000  Grant notifications 
24 In Black Spot grants  (1,163,000)  Grant notifications 

    0   
       

  Water Fund     
25 Ex Various operating expenses  62,687  Increased costs 
25 Ex Loan interest  (1,179,320)  Loan funding less than budget 
25 Ex Loan repayments  (237,619)  Loan funding less than budget 
25 In Loan funding  2,625,000  Loan funding less than budget 
25 Ex Various capital works  (3,407,475)  Projects deferred to future years 
25 In Capital Grants  100,000  Funding adjusted because of deferrals 
25 Ex Transfers to Asset replacement reserve  188,766  Funding adjusted because of deferrals 
25 In Transfers from Asset Replacement Reserve 440,434  Funding adjusted because of deferrals 
25 In Transfers from Capital Contributions Reserve 1,407,527  Funding adjusted because of deferrals 
  Sewer Fund     

26 Ex Various operating expenses  316,230  Increased costs 
26 Ex Various capital works  (1,127,395)  Projects deferred to future years 
26 In Capital Grants  280,000  Funding adjusted because of deferrals 
26 Ex Transfers to Asset replacement reserve  (908,335)  Funding adjusted because of deferrals 
26 In Transfers from Asset Replacement Reserve 696,500  Funding adjusted because of deferrals 
26 In Transfers from Capital Contributions Reserve 743,000  Funding adjusted because of deferrals 

    0   
       
 2. Variations Arising from Council Resolutions    

27 Ex 
Purchase road widening land Fraser 
Drive  116,650  Council meeting 2/9/08 

27 In Recoup from s94 Plan 4  (116,650)  Council meeting 2/9/08 
    0   
       
  Summary of Revotes by Type     
  2007/08 Variations  0   
  Council Resolutions  0   
  Carried forward     
    0   
       

  Summary of Revotes - by Category     
  Expenses     
  Operating  3,126,983   
  Interest  (1,184,570)   
  Capital  (346,938)   
  Loan Repayments  (242,567)   
  Transfers to Reserves  (719,569)   
    633,339   
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  Income     
  Operating  (2,791,438)   
  Capital Grants & Conts  (585,500)   
  Loan Funds  2,695,000   
  Recoupments  (197,898)   
  Transfers from Reserves  246,497   
  Asset Sales  0   
    (633,339)   
       
  Net  0   
       
  Summary of Revotes - by Division     
       
  Technology & Corporate Services  (380,981)   
  Planning & Regulation  150,000   
  Community & Natural Resources  57,238   
  Engineering & Operations  131,981   
  General Manager  41,762   
    0   
       

 
Budget Summary        

        
 General Fund Water Fund Sewer Fund   

 
Original 
Budget 

Revised 
Budget 

Original 
Budget 

Revised 
Budget 

Original 
Budget 

Revised 
Budget Total 

        
Income Statement        
         
 Operating Expenses        
Materials & Contracts 24,186 38,733 2,795 2,795 3,313 3,629 45,157 
Employee Costs 32,382 32,382 2,600 2,600 4,500 4,500 39,482 
Interest Charges 4,056 4,051 3,628 3,628 263 263 7,942 
Depreciation 14,001 14,001 7,407 7,407 12,702 12,702 34,110 
Other Operating Expenses 5,000 5,178 750 750 750 750 6,678 
 79,625 94,345 17,180 17,180 21,528 21,844 133,369 
 Operating Revenue        
Rates & Annual Charges 43,146 43,146 2,886 2,886 15,782 15,782 61,814 
User Charges & Fees 12,543 12,560 11,806 11,806 1,547 1,547 25,913 
Interest 2,502 2,502 106 106 106 106 2,714 
Other Operating Revenue 1,300 1,300 50 50 50 50 1,400 
Grants & Contributions 13,397 16,187 424 424 442 442 17,053 
 72,888 75,695 15,272 15,272 17,927 17,927 108,894 
             
Surplus/(Deficit) before Capital Amounts (6,737) (18,650) (1,908) (1,908) (3,601) (3,917) (24,475) 
             
Grants & Contributions (Capital amounts) 6,544 7,510 5,088 5,088 3,122 2,842 15,440 
             
Surplus/(Deficit) after Capital Amounts (193) (11,140) 3,180 3,180 (479) (1,075) (9,035) 
               
Funding Result Reconciliation        
        
Add Back non-funded items:        
Depreciation 14,001 14,001 7,407 7,407 12,702 12,702 34,110 
Internal Transfers 6,733 6,733 (3,440) (3,440) (3,093) (3,093) 200 
        
 20,541 9,594 7,147 7,147 9,130 8,534 25,275 
        
Transfers from Externally Restricted Cash 12,109 15,612 6,038 6,038 3,424 2,681 24,331 
Transfers from Internally Restricted Cash 545 13,166 16,617 16,617 5,277 4,581 34,364 
Proceeds from sale of assets 1,815 1,815    0 1,815 
Loan Funds Utilised 9,129 17,941 40,545 40,545  0 58,486 
Repayments from Deferred Debtors        
 44,139 58,128 70,347 70,347 17,831 15,796 144,271 
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 General Fund Water Fund Sewer Fund   

 
Original 
Budget 

Revised 
Budget 

Original 
Budget 

Revised 
Budget 

Original 
Budget 

Revised 
Budget Total 

Funds were applied to:        
Purchase and construction of assets (31,285) (45,279) (60,721) (60,721) (10,205) (9,078) (115,078) 
Repayment of principal on loans (4,116) (4,111) (238) (238) (497) (497) (4,846) 
Transfers to Externally Restricted Cash (5,308) (5,308) (4,989) (4,989) (2,392) (2,392) (12,689) 
Transfers to Internally Restricted Cash (3,430) (3,430) (4,399) (4,399) (4,737) (3,829) (11,658) 
Increase/(Decrease) in Available 
Working Capital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
        
Available Working Capital Previous 
Financial Year 200 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 4,200 
        
Available Working Capital as at 30 
June 2009 200 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 4,200 
        
Summary by Division        
        
Surplus/(Deficit)        
Technology & Corporate Services (42,905,799) (43,286,780) 0 0 0 0  
Planning & Regulation 5,143,714 5,293,714 0 0 0 0  
Community & Natural Resources 7,813,719 8,369,470 0 0 0 0  
Engineering & Operations 27,492,226 27,125,694 0 0 0 0  
General Manager 2,456,140 2,497,902 0 0 0 0  
 0 0 0 0 0 0  

 
General Fund 
 
The General Fund is expected to remain as a “balanced budget”.  
 
Water Fund 
 
The Water Fund remains in a sound financial position with sufficient reserves to meet 
any unexpected costs and is expected to remain as a balanced budget.  
 
Sewer Fund 
 
The Sewer Fund remains in a sound financial position with sufficient reserves to meet 
any unexpected costs and is expected to remain as a balanced budget.  
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Statutory Statement – Local Government (General) Regulations 2005 
(Sections 202 & 203) by “Responsible Accounting Officer” 
 

202 Responsible accounting officer to maintain system for budgetary 
control 

The responsible accounting officer of a council must:  
(a) establish and maintain a system of budgetary control that will enable the 

council’s actual income and expenditure to be monitored each month and 
to be compared with the estimate of the council’s income and 
expenditure, and 

(b) if any instance arises where the actual income or expenditure of the 
council is materially different from its estimated income or expenditure, 
report the instance to the next meeting of the council. 

 

203 Budget review statements and revision of estimates 

(1) Not later than 2 months after the end of each quarter, the responsible 
accounting officer of a council must prepare and submit to the council a 
budget review statement that shows, by reference to the estimate of 
income and expenditure set out in the management plan that the council 
has adopted for the relevant year, a revised estimate of the income and 
expenditure for that year. 

(2) A budget review statement must include or be accompanied by:  
(a) a report as to whether or not the responsible accounting officer believes 

that the statement indicates that the financial position of the council is 
satisfactory, having regard to the original estimate of income and 
expenditure, and 

(b) if that position is unsatisfactory, recommendations for remedial action. 
(3) A budget review statement must also include any information required by 

the Code to be included in such a statement. 
 
Statutory Statement 
I consider that the financial position of Council is satisfactory “having 
regard to the original estimate of income and expenditure”. 
 

 
 
M A Chorlton 
“Responsible Accounting Officer” 
Manager Financial Services  
Tweed Shire Council 

 
LEGAL/RESOURCE/FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
As discussed in the report. 
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POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
UNDER SEPARATE COVER/FURTHER INFORMATION: 

To view any "non confidential" attachments listed below, access the meetings link on Council's website 
www.tweed.nsw.gov.au or visit Council's offices at Tweed Heads or Murwillumbah (from Friday the week 
before the meeting) or Council's libraries (from Monday the week of the meeting). 
 
Nil. 
 

 
 

http://www.tweed.nsw.gov.au/
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O5 [TCS-OC] Corporate Quarterly Report - July to September 2008  
 
ORIGIN: 

Corporate Compliance 
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: 

The Corporate Quarterly Report including progress on the 7 Year Infrastructure & 
Services Plan for the period 1 July to 30 September 2008 is presented for consideration 
by the Council. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

That Council receives and notes the Corporate Quarterly Report including 
progress on the 7 Year Infrastructure & Services Plan for the period 1 July to 
30 September 2008. 
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REPORT: 

The following report details the Quarterly Corporate progress, including progress on the 
7 Year Infrastructure & Services Plan, for the period July to September 2008 on activities 
identified to be undertaken during 2008-2009 in the 2008-2011 Management Plan. 
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LEGAL/RESOURCE/FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
UNDER SEPARATE COVER/FURTHER INFORMATION: 

To view any "non confidential" attachments listed below, access the meetings link on Council's website 
www.tweed.nsw.gov.au or visit Council's offices at Tweed Heads or Murwillumbah (from Friday the week 
before the meeting) or Council's libraries (from Monday the week of the meeting). 
 
Nil. 
 

 
 
 
 

http://www.tweed.nsw.gov.au/
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O6 [TCS-OC] Monthly Investment Report for Period Ending 31 October 2008  
 
ORIGIN: 

Financial Services 
 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: 

This report is provided to Council to advise details of monies Council has invested in 
accordance with Section 625 of the Local Government Act 1993. 
 
Council had $119,384,340 invested as at 31 October 2008 and the net return on these 
funds was $583,553 or 4.88% annualised for the month. The net return on funds 
invested this month is slightly up. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

That in accordance with Section 625 of the Local Government Act 1993 the 
monthly investment report as at 31 October 2008 totalling $119,384,340.06 be 
received and noted. 
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REPORT: 

Report for Period Ending 31 October 2008 
 
The "Responsible Accounting Officer" must report monthly to Council, setting out details 
of all the funds Council has invested and certification has been made in accordance with 
Section 625 of the Local Government Act (1993), Clause 212 of the Local Government 
(General) Regulations and Council policies. 
 
1. CURRENT INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO BY CATEGORY 

Fund Managers
31%

Term Deposits
49%

Term Deposit - Loan 
Offset

1%

Asset Backed 
Securities

5%

Call Account
3%

Floating Rate Notes
8%

Corporate Bond
1%

Collaterised Debt 
Obligation

2%
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2. INVESTMENT RATES - 90 DAY BANK BILL RATE (%) 
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3. ANNUALISED RATE OF RETURN FOR FUNDS MANAGERS - NET OF FEES 
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4. FUND MANAGERS END OF MONTH BALANCE 

30 Days Term
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5. MONTHLY COMPARISON OF TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED 
 
Fund Credit 

Rating 
Percentage 
of Total 
Fund 
Managers 
Current 
Month 

Fund 
Managers 
Balance 
end of 
Previous 
month  

Fund 
Managers 
Balance 
end of 
Current 
month  

Distribution 
for 
Month/Quarter  

  

AMF Yield Fund AAA 2.90% $1,060,963 $1,067,371 $6,408 Monthly 
ANZ Cash Plus AA 2.46% $902,656 $906,533 $9,532 Monthly 
LGFS - Exp 
Credit 

n/a 9.82% $5,903,734 $3,616,204 $6,523 Monthly 

LGFS - FOCF AA- 56.48% $20,638,185 $20,793,740 $140,057 Quarterly 
Macquarie IP A 28.34% $10,398,474 $10,432,223 $27,459 Quarterly 
Total   100% $38,904,012 $36,816,071 $189,978   
* $10m Redemption AMF Yield Fund September 
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6. ANNUAL PROGRESSIVE TOTAL OF INTEREST ON TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED 

Institution 
Short Term 

Credit Rating 
Amount 
Invested Term % Return 

Estimated 
interest due 
on maturity   

$ 
           
Adelaide Bendigo 
Bank A2 $2,000,000.00 181 7.900 78,350.68
Bank of 
Queensland A2 $2,000,000.00 60 7.750 25,479.45
Bank of 
Queensland A2 $2,000,000.00 70 7.750 29,726.03
Bank of 
Queensland A2 $1,000,000.00 245 7.700 51,684.93
BankWest A1 $4,000,000.00 190 7.400 154,082.19
BankWest A1 $3,000,000.00 180 7.800 115,397.26
BankWest  A1 $2,000,000.00 106 7.800 45,304.11
BankWest  A1 $4,000,000.00 91 7.710 76,888.77
BankWest  A1 $2,000,000.00 90 7.800 38,465.75
Commonwealth 
Bank A1+ $951,625.00 182 5.220 24,769.36
Commonwealth 
Bank A1+ $3,000,000.00

overnight 
cash 5.950 N/A

Local 
Government 
Financial 
Services A $2,000,000.00 91 7.800 38,893.15
Macquarie Bank A1 $5,000,000.00 180 8.080 199,232.88
National Australia 
Bank A1+ $2,000,000.00 98 7.700 41,347.95
National Australia 
Bank A1+ $4,000,000.00 180 8.000 157,808.22
National Australia 
Bank A1+ $4,000,000.00 189 8.000 165,698.63
St George Bank A1 $3,000,000.00 93 7.700 58,857.53
St George Bank A1 $5,000,000.00 95 7.990 103,979.45
Suncorp Metway A+ $3,000,000.00 90 7.940 58,734.25
Suncorp Metway A+ $4,000,000.00 105 7.900 90,904.11
Suncorp Metway A+ $2,000,000.00 180 7.840 77,326.03
Suncorp Metway A+ $1,000,000.00 365 8.390 83,900.00
Suncorp Metway A+ $3,000,000.00 1095 8.300 747,000.00

  Total 63,951,625.00  Total 2,463,830.73
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7. PORTFOLIO PERFORMANCE 

Counterparty/ 
Product Name Face Value  

Marked to 
Market Value 

Next 
Quarterly 
or Final 
Coupon 

% Return on 
Face Value 

Direct 
Security 

Type 
Maturity 

Date 
Adelaide - ANZ $1,000,000.00 $1,002,833.00 $17,787.37 8.195 FRN 22/05/09
ANZ $991,550.00 $978,536.00 $18,484.40 7.577 FRN 17/08/10
ANZ - Fixed Rate 
Note/Bond $994,010.00 $1,054,960.00 $456,770.22 8.650 FRN 22/04/13
CBA - Colonial 
FRN $991,649.95 $972,850.11 $14,577.03 6.010 FRN 20/07/10
CBA $2,000,000.00 $1,984,174.31 $31,363.00 6.340 FRN 21/01/11
Deutsche Bank $1,000,000.00 $916,157.00 $18,682.07 8.270 FRN 23/11/12
Macquarie - 
Members Equity 
Sub-ordinated 
debt $2,000,000.00 $1,656,420.00 $33,838.62 8.285 ABS 8/03/12
Macquarie/HSBC $2,004,300.00 $1,810,513.49 $37,600.64 8.330 FRN 24/01/11
Merril Lynch - 
Argon Capital $6,000,000.00 $4,193,743.72 $84,177.93 6.185 ABS 22/01/18
NAB  $2,000,000.00 $2,017,836.64 $38,183.55 7.590 FRN 26/11/10
Westpac CDO 
Shield Series 18 $2,017,700.00 $2,028,620.00 $40,992.02 8.195 CDO 4/12/08
Total $20,999,209.95 $18,616,644.27    
Legend:        
ABS = Asset Backed Security      
CDO = Collaterised Debt Obligation      
FRN = Floating Rate Note      

 
 
8. TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED 
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9. TOTAL PORTFOLIO INCOME 
Managed funds net distributions, term deposits accrued interest and direct securities accrued 
coupons 
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10. PORTFOLIO PERFORMANCE 

Current month annualised return 
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11. PORTFOLIO PERFORMANCE 
Current month actual return 
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12. MARKET COMMENTARY 
 
Domestic Economy 
The deteriorating outlook for world growth has contributed to broad-based falls in world 
commodity prices over recent months. Oil has traded at around US$65 a barrel during 
October, down from a peak of US$140 in July. Base metal prices are down by an 
average of more than 30% since the start of 2008 and rural commodity prices have also 
fallen. Based on these developments, it is clear that Australia's terms of trade have now 
peaked and movements in the terms of trade are likely to subtract noticably from national 
income growth over the year ahead. 
 
Rising fuel costs and financial turmoil prompted the needed moderation in demand after 
a period of rapid growth. Moderating domestic demand has removed some upward 
pressure on inflation. The slowdown in domestic spending has been led by the 
household sector. 
 
Global Economy 
World financial markets have come under severe stress during October. Strains in credit 
markets escalated in early September and the period since has been marked by further 
large declines in equity prices and exceptional volatility across a range of markets. In 
response to these developments, a number of governments have announced measures 
to strengthen their financial systems which could stabilise conditions over time. 
 
The renewed turmoil was sparked by the failure or near failure of a number of financial 
institutions. In the United States the largest mortgage institutions were effectively 
nationalised in September along with one of the world's major insurance companies. 
September also saw the demise of several large US investment banks. 
 
In the United Kingdom and Europe several large financial institutions came under stress 
and required government assistance. 
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These events saw an intensification of the credit tightening that was already beginning to 
take hold in a number of countries. The renewed turmoil caused a serious tightening in 
credit availability to develop. As confidence in the financial sector deteriorated, banks 
became more uncertain about their ability to sustain their funding and this in turn made it 
more difficult for them to lend to sound borrowers in the non-financial sector. In some 
countries this was exacerbated by a lack of funding in the banking system.  
 
Council's Investment Portfolio Performance 
Term deposits and floating rate notes this month experienced reduced returns as the 
cash rate diminished however continued to moderate the volatile returns experienced by 
the managed funds held in Council's investment portfolio. The cash rate was cut to 
5.25% in early November and this will translate to a further reduction in returns from 
bank bill linked investments such as term deposits and floating rate notes.   
 
Extreme volatility is still apparent in financial markets, although the effects have been 
mitigated significantly this month in Council's investment portfolio by sourcing new term 
deposits and reducing the amount held in managed funds. On average term deposits 
returned 7.76% pa to Council during October. 
 
The $6m Argon Asset Backed Security is currently valued by Oakvale Capital at 
$4,193,744. The Helium Note component of this structured deal continues to decline on 
a marked to market basis.  
 
The Portfolio Performance graph at Point 9 above shows 7.45% annualised return for the 
month of October as opposed to September's 2.49%. This highlights the significant effect 
of increased investment in term deposits and floating rate notes at this time compared 
with managed funds. Interestingly, capital values for most managed funds increased 
during the month and this also had a positive effect on Council's October Portfolio 
Performance.  
 
A clearer indication of Portfolio performance is provided by disregarding changes in 
capital values. For example, Council had $119,384,340 invested as at 31 October 2008 
and the net return on these funds was $583,553 or 4.88% annualised for the month. The 
net return on funds invested this month is slightly up this month due to a reduction in the 
amount available for investment and overall higher returns. 
 
13. INVESTMENT SUMMARY AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2008 
GENERAL FUND 

 COLLATERISED DEBT OBLIGATION 2,028,620.00  
 CORPORATE BOND 1,054,960.00  
 FLOATING RATE NOTE 9,682,900.55  
 ASSET BACKED SECURITIES 5,850,163.72  
 FUND MANAGERS 3,129,089.22  
 LOAN OFFSET 951,625.00  

 TERM DEPOSITS 60,000,000.00  
 CALL 3,000,000.00 85,697,358.49
WATER FUND 
 TERM DEPOSITS 0.00  
 FUND MANAGERS 31,187,934.35 31,187,934.35
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SEWERAGE FUND 
 TERM DEPOSITS 0.00  
 FUND MANAGERS 2,499,047.22 2,499,047.22
  TOTAL INVESTMENTS 119,384,340.06
 
It should be noted that the General Funds investments of $85 million are not available to 
be used for general purpose expenditure.  It is virtually all restricted by legislation and 
council resolution for such purposes as unexpended loans, developer contributions, 
unexpended grants and various specific purpose reserves such as domestic waste, land 
development and employee leave entitlements. 
 
 
Statutory Statement - Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 Clause 212 
I certify that Council's investments have been made in accordance with the Local 
Government Act 1993, the Local Government (General) Regulations and Council's 
investment policies. 
 

 
Chief Financial Officer (Responsible Accounting Officer) 
 
LEGAL/RESOURCE/FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
UNDER SEPARATE COVER/FURTHER INFORMATION: 

To view any "non confidential" attachments listed below, access the meetings link on Council's website 
www.tweed.nsw.gov.au or visit Council's offices at Tweed Heads or Murwillumbah (from Friday the week 
before the meeting) or Council's libraries (from Monday the week of the meeting). 
 
Nil. 
 

 
 
 

http://www.tweed.nsw.gov.au/
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O7 [TCS-OC] 2007/2008 Statutory Financial Reports / Audit Report  
 
ORIGIN: 

Financial Services 
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: 

Council's Statutory General Purpose Financial Reports in accordance with Section 413 
(2) (c) of the Local Government Act, 1993 for the financial year ended 30 June 2008 
have been completed and audited.  The Reports, including significant accounting policies 
and associated independent Audit Report from Thomas, Noble and Russell (TNR), 
presents Council with a financial overview of its operations for the year 2007/08. 
 
The financial result for the year reveals that Council's finances are in a favourable 
position and that the internal financial management practices are sound. 
 
The Financial Reports for 2007/08 are now presented to Council for adoption. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

That Council:- 
 
1. Adopts the tabled 2007/08 Financial Reports. 
 
2. Executes the Statement under Section 413(2)(c) on the annual 

financial report. 
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REPORT: 

Council’s General Purpose Financial Report, including significant accounting policies for 
year ended 30 June 2008 have now been completed and the auditor’s report received.   
 
A copy of the Financial Reports will be tabled to this meeting. 
 
These reports were completed by Council and audited by Council’s auditors, Thomas 
Noble and Russell. 
 
Legislation Requirements 
 
The Local Government Act, 1993 (“the Act”) relating to the preparation of Council’s 
annual financial reports requires that: - 
 
1. Section 413 – A council must prepare financial reports for each year, and must refer 

them for audit as soon as practicable after the end of that year. 
 
2. Section 413 (2) – A council’s financial reports must include: 

(a) a general purpose financial report; 
(b) any other matter prescribed by the regulations; and 
(c) a statement in the approved form by the council as to its opinion on the 

general purpose financial report. 
 
3. Section 413 (3) – The general purpose financial report must be prepared in 

accordance with the Act and the regulations and the requirements of: 
(a) the publications issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board, as 

in force for the time being, subject to regulations; and 
(b) such other standards as may be prescribed by the regulations. 
 

4. Section 416 – A council’s financial reports for a year must be prepared and audited 
within the period of 4 months after the end of that year. 

 
5. Section 418 – Upon receiving the Auditor’s Report, the Act requires the Council to 

give at least 7 days public notice of the meeting at which it proposes to present its 
audited financial reports, together with the Auditor’s Report, to the public. 

 
6. Section 420 – Any person may make a submission to the Council with respect to 

the Council’s audited financial reports or with respect to the Auditor’s Report. 
 
7. Section 428(2)(a) – The audited financial reports must be included in the Council’s 

annual report. 
 
8. Clause 215 of the Local Government (General) Regulation, 2005 requires that the 

Statement under Section 413(2)(c) on the annual financial report must be made by 
resolution of the Council and signed by the Mayor, at least one (1) other member of 
Council, the General Manager and the Responsible Accounting Officer. 

 



 
OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING DATE:  TUESDAY 18 NOVEMBER 2008 

 
 

 
PAGE 75 

9. It is a requirement of the Department of Local Government that lodgement of the 
Audited Financial Statements and the Auditors Report be submitted to the Director 
General by 7 November of each year. 

 
Due to the requirements to revalue Operational Land and Buildings, Council sought 
and received an extension from the Department of Local Government for 
submission of the Audited Financial Statements and the Auditors Report to the 30 
November 2008. 

 
Council’s Responsibility 
 
Council is responsible for the preparation of the financial reports and adequate 
disclosures.  This includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal 
controls, the selection and application of accounting policies, and the safeguarding of the 
assets of Council.  As the Responsible Accounting Officer, the Manager Financial 
Services, Mr Michael Chorlton has stated the accounting records have been maintained 
in accordance with Section 412 of the Act and in a manner that permitted the preparation 
of the General and Special Purpose Financial Reports for the year ended 30 June 2008. 
 
Update No. 16 to the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial 
Reporting was issued in June of this year and is relevant to accounting periods ending 
30 June 2008. 
 
Benefits and Purpose of Annual Financial Reporting 
 
The primary benefits of financial reporting are: 
 

• It makes Council accountable to the community for its financial management 
• It provides the community and other interested parties with access to information 

about the current financial status of Council and its operational performance for 
the period in question. 

 
The purpose of financial reporting, or the preparation of annual financial statements, is to 
communicate information about the financial position and operating results of Council to 
those who need to know or have an interest in Council operations. 
 
Parties who have an interest in, or need to know financial reporting information include: 
 

• councillors and management; 
• residents/ratepayers; 
• government departments and public authorities; 
• community groups; and 
• financial institutions 

 
The users of financial reporting information are varied and financial statements must, 
therefore, be structured to meet all their respective requirements.  This is achieved 
through conformity with the Australian Accounting Standards, which apply to the majority 
of business operations in Australia. 
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORTING SYSTEM 
 
General Purpose Financial Reports 
Under the requirements of Australian Accounting Standards, Council is required to 
prepare the following reports for each financial year. 
 
Income Statement 
This shows the operating result and change in net assets from operations for the year. 
 
Balance Sheet 
This discloses the assets, liabilities and equity of Council. 
 
Statement of Changes in Equity 
This reconciles opening and closing balances for each class of equity during the 
reporting period and gives details of any movement in these classes of equity. 
 
Cash Flow Statement 
This shows information about cash flows associated with Council’s operating, financing 
and investing activities. 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
These disclose the accounting policies adopted by Council and provide additional 
material necessary for evaluating and interpreting the financial statements. 
 
In addition to the General Purpose Financial Reports, Council must also submit the 
Auditor’s Reports in accordance with Section 417(1) of the Act and Council’s Certificate 
in accordance with Section 413(2)(c) of the Act. 
 
Special Schedules 
The Department of Local Government, the Local Government Grants Commission and 
the Department of Water and Energy require a series of schedules.  These provide 
additional details on Council’s net cost of services; internal and external loans; operating 
statements and statements of net assets committed for water and sewerage services; 
and information on water and sewerage rates and charges. 
 
AUDIT MANDATE 
 
Council’s Auditors, Thomas Noble and Russell, have completed the audit of Council’s 
general purpose financial reports for the year ended 30 June 2008 under Section 417 of 
the Local Government Act 1993. 
 
The audit included: 
 

• An examination of the financial information for the purpose of expressing and 
opinion on financial statements to help establish the credibility of those statements 

• An examination of financial information for the purpose of reporting on the legality 
and control of operations and the probity of those dealing with public funds, and 
including the expression of an opinion on an entity’s compliance with the statutory 
requirements and regulations that govern the activities of Council. 
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Council’s auditor must prepare two reports to Council (Section 417 (1)): - 
 

• A report on the general purpose financial report, and 
• A report on the conduct of the audit. 

 
As soon as practicable after receiving the auditor’s reports, Council must send a copy of 
the audited financial reports and the auditor’s reports to the NSW Department of Local 
Government. 
 
MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY - AUDIT 
 
The performance of an audit or the provision of an audit report does not in any way 
absolve or relieve management of its responsibility in the maintenance of adequate 
accounting policies and the preparation of financial information such as budget 
preparation and the quarterly budget reviews submitted to Council each three months.  
Council has strong internal management reporting practices in place that ensures all 
costs and income are monitored and acted upon. 
 
Management has the responsibility to safeguard Council assets and prescribe policies 
and procedures that are consistent with the economic and efficient use of resources. 
 
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 
Council remains in a sound financial position regarding its short-term liquidity.  The key 
financial performance ratios, as shown in the statements and listed in the following table, 
remain at satisfactory levels. 
 
Performance Indicators 2007/08 2006/07 2005/06 
Unrestricted Current Ratio  2.378 2.325 2.250 
Debt Service Ratio  7.35% 6.88% 6.91% 
Rates and Annual Charges Coverage Ratio 41.50% 40.28% 42.45% 
Rates and Annual Charges Outstanding  4.98% 4.79% 5.28% 

 
To clarify the meaning and implication, a basic definition of each indicator is listed below. 
 
a) Unrestricted Current Ratio – The total current cash or cash convertible assets 

available, divided by current liabilities, excluding assets and liabilities, which relate 
to activities that are restricted to specific purposes by legislation.  This is a measure 
of Council’s liquidity.  

 
b) Debt Service Ratio – The amount used to repay borrowings as a percentage of total 

operating revenues.  The indicator shows the amount of revenue necessary to 
service annual debt obligations.  

 
c) Rates and Annual Charges Coverage Ratio – This percentage is based on rates 

and annual charges revenues as a percentage of total operating revenues.  This is 
a measure of Council’s dependency on rate income.   
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d) Rates and Annual Charges Outstanding Percentage – This percentage is based on 
the amount outstanding as a percentage of the amount to be collected for rates and 
annual charges.  This indicator measures the effectiveness of Council in recovering 
legally owed debts.  

 
FINANCIAL OVERVIEW - GENERAL COMMENTS 
 
While the above performance indicators reflect a sound position, the result has only been 
achieved through tight control over Council finances.  Council’s infrastructure needs 
continue to exceed available funds and the demand for works and services continue to 
grow as the population of the Shire increases.  As experienced during the recent 
deliberations for the 2008/09 Management Plan & Budget, funding for operational and 
capital works continues to remain tight. 
 
 

INCOME STATEMENT 
for the year ended 30 June 2008 

 
 
Original 
budget(1)   Actual Actual

2008   2008 2007
$'000  Notes $'000  $'000

 INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS     
 Revenue:     

54,191  Rates and annual charges 3a 56,588   51,657 
23,893  User charges and fees 3b 23,656   21,884 

6,123  Interest and investment revenue 3c 4,297   8,735 
1,000  Other revenues 3d 9,683   1,194 

14,266  Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes 3e,f 17,210   15,312 
27,401  Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes 3e,f 24,882   30,745 

 Other Income:     

 
Share of interests in joint ventures and associates using the 
equity method 19 38   34 

         
126,874  TOTAL INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS  136,354   129,561 
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 EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS     
40,000  Employee benefits and on-costs 4a 39,930   35,966 

5,820  Borrowing costs 4b 3,691   2,560 
19,334  Materials and contracts 4c 31,611   25,646 
39,229  Depreciation and amortisation 4d 36,563   34,771 
10,000  Other expenses  4e 10,172   10,045 

 Net Loss from the disposal of assets 5 2,018   136 
114,383  TOTAL EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS  123,985   109,124 

      
      

12,491  OPERATING RESULT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS  12,369   20,437 
      

12,491  NET OPERATING RESULT FOR THE YEAR  12,369   20,437 
      

 Attributable to Council     
12,491  - Council  12,369   20,437 

      
 NET OPERATING RESULT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE GRANTS AND       
(14,910) CONTRIBUTIONS PROVIDED FOR CAPITAL PURPOSES  (12,513)  (10,308)

      
 Note:     

 (1) The original budget as approved by Council - refer Note 16     
 The above Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.   
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BALANCE SHEET 

as at 30 June 2008 
 

  Actual  Actual
  2008  2007

Notes $'000  $'000
ASSETS    
Current assets     
Cash and cash equivalents 6a 110,602   119,395 
Investments 6b 4,045    
Receivables 7 12,567   10,453 
Inventories 8 828   892 
Other 8 2,146   984 
Total current assets  130,188   131,724 
     
Non-current assets     
Investments 6b 16,955   9,248 
Receivables 7 2,535   1,230 
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 9 1,875,995   1,428,479 
Investment property 14 2,208   1,685 
Intangible assets 23 919   456 
Total non-current assets  1,898,612   1,441,098 
Total assets  2,028,800   1,572,822 
     
LIABILITIES     
Current liabilities     
Payables 10 16,196   11,370 
Borrowings 10 4,053   4,052 
Provisions  10 19,570   13,463 
Total current liabilities  39,819   28,885 
     
Non-current liabilities     
Payables 10 382   624 
Borrowings 10 75,484   43,906 
Provisions  10 4,732   5,347 
Total non-current liabilities  80,598   49,877 
Total liabilities  120,417   78,762 
     
Net assets  1,908,383   1,494,060 
     
EQUITY     
Retained earnings 20 973,065   960,683 
Revaluation reserves 20 935,318   533,377 
Council equity interest  1,908,383   1,494,060 
     

Total equity  1,908,383   1,494,060 
     

The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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COUNCIL OF TWEED SHIRE 

 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

 
for the year ended 30 June 2008 

 
 
  Actual  Actual 
  2008  2007 
  $'000  $'000 
             
     Asset      Asset   
 Notes Retained Revaluation Total   Retained Revaluation Total  
 Ref Earnings Reserve Equity  earnings Reserve Equity 
                
Balance at 
beginning of 
the reporting 
period 20 960,683 533,377 1,494,060  940,246 98,495 1,038,741
                
Adjustment 20 13   13        
                   
Transfers 
to/(from) Asset 
Revaluation 
Reserve 9,20   401,941 401,941    434,882 434,882
                
                
Net 
movements 
recognised 
directly in 
equity   960,696 935,318 1,896,014  940,246 533,377 1,473,623
                
Net operating 
result for the 
year   12,369   12,369  20,437   20,437
Total 
recognised 
income and 
expense for 
the year                
Balance at 
end of the 
reporting 
period 20 973,065 935,318 1,908,383  960,683 533,377 1,494,060
                
Effect of 
correction of 
error in 
previous years 20              
being an 
increase in 
retained 
earnings                
The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

for the year ended 30 June 2008 
 

 Budget    Actual  Actual 
2008   2008  2007  

 ($'000)   Notes ($'000)  ($'000) 
 Cash flows from operating activities     
 Receipts:     

54,191  Rates and annual charges  56,258   52,210 
23,893  User charges and fees  22,385   20,175 

6,123  Investment revenue and interest  4,051   8,363 
31,487  Grants and contributions  30,480   43,495 

1,000  Other  9,683   1,272 
 Payments:     
(40,000) Employee benefits and on-costs  (36,456)  (35,449)
(19,334) Materials & contracts   (38,028)  (36,163)
(5,820) Borrowing costs  (3,686)  (2,660)

(10,000) Other      
41,540  Net cash provided by operating activities 11(b) 44,687   51,243 

      
 Cash flows from investing activities     
 Receipts:     
 Sale of investments  166   2,000 

2,400  Sale of infrastructure, property, plant & equipment  1,701   1,389 
 Payments from deferred debtor  370   53 
 Increase of deposits held in trust  437   1,016 
 Payments:     
 Purchase of investments  (13,976)  (4,000)
(95,568) Purchase of infrastructure property, plant & equipment  (71,237)  (66,646)
 Advances to deferred debtors  (1,676)  (33)
 Refunds of deposits held in trust  (844)  (624)
(93,168) Net cash used in Investing activities  (85,059)  (66,845)
      
 Cash flows from financing activities     
 Receipts:     

60,827  Borrowings and advances  35,714   9,751 
 Payments:     
(5,012) Borrowings and advances  (4,135)  (3,781)
55,815  Net cash provided by financing activities  31,579   5,970 

      
4,187  Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (8,793)  (9,632)

      
119,395  Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of reporting period 11(a) 119,395   129,027 
      
123,582  Cash and cash equivalents at end of reporting period 11(a) 110,602   119,395 
      
      
 The above Cash Flow Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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LEGAL/RESOURCE/FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
UNDER SEPARATE COVER/FURTHER INFORMATION: 

To view any "non confidential" attachments listed below, access the meetings link on Council's website 
www.tweed.nsw.gov.au or visit Council's offices at Tweed Heads or Murwillumbah (from Friday the week 
before the meeting) or Council's libraries (from Monday the week of the meeting). 
 
Nil. 
 

 
 

http://www.tweed.nsw.gov.au/
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O8 [TCS-OC] 2007/2008 Statutory Annual Report  
 
ORIGIN: 

Corporate Compliance 
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: 

In accordance with Section 428(1) of the Local Government Act 1993, Council must 
within five months after the end of each financial year prepare a report as to its 
achievements with respect to the objectives and performance targets set out in its 
Management Plan for that year. 
 
The Annual report must address a number of requirements, contained within Section 
428(2) of the Local Government Act 1993. 
 
Council’s Annual Report for 2007/2008 has been prepared in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 428 of the Local Government Act 1993 and is ready for forwarding 
to the Department of Local Government as required by Section 428(3). 
 
Information on the Annual Report will be published in the Tweed Link and the document 
will be displayed on Council's Internet site. Copies of the document will be made 
available at the libraries and to the public upon request. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

That Council receives and notes the production of the 2007/2008 Annual 
Report. 
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REPORT: 

As per summary. 
 
LEGAL/RESOURCE/FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
UNDER SEPARATE COVER/FURTHER INFORMATION: 

To view any "non confidential" attachments listed below, access the meetings link on Council's website 
www.tweed.nsw.gov.au or visit Council's offices at Tweed Heads or Murwillumbah (from Friday the week 
before the meeting) or Council's libraries (from Monday the week of the meeting). 
 
1. 2007/2008 Statutory Annual Report (DW 1931339) 
2. State of the Environment 2008 Report (DW 1931312) 
 

 
 
 

http://www.tweed.nsw.gov.au/
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O9 [TCS-OC] Election Funding and Disclosure Act 1981 - Councillors and 
Mayor Obligation for Reporting  

 
ORIGIN: 

Director Technology & Corporate Services 
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: 

Council has received correspondence from the Election Funding Authority advising that 
Councillors have been advised of their responsibilities under the Election Funding and 
Disclosure Act 1981.  A copy of this advice is included in the report for Council's 
information. 
 
Each Councillor is required to submit their declarations under this Act. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

That Council acknowledges receipt of the advice from the Election Funding 
Authority with regard to elected members obligations under the Election 
Funding and Disclosure Act 1981 for bi-annual reporting. 
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REPORT: 

Council has received correspondence from the Election Funding Authority advising that 
Councillors have been advised of their responsibilities under the Election Funding and 
Disclosure Act 1981.  A copy of this advice is included in the report for Council's 
information. 
 
Each Councillor is required to submit their declarations under this Act. 
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LEGAL/RESOURCE/FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
UNDER SEPARATE COVER/FURTHER INFORMATION: 

To view any "non confidential" attachments listed below, access the meetings link on Council's website 
www.tweed.nsw.gov.au or visit Council's offices at Tweed Heads or Murwillumbah (from Friday the week 
before the meeting) or Council's libraries (from Monday the week of the meeting). 
 
Nil. 
 

 
 
 

http://www.tweed.nsw.gov.au/
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O10 [TCS-OC] In Kind and Real Donations - July to September 2008  
 
ORIGIN: 

Financial Services 
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: 

Details of in kind and real donations for the period July to September 2008 are 
reproduced in this report for Council's information. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

That Council notes total donations of $142,559 for the period July to 
September 2008. 
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REPORT: 

Council maintains a register of in kind and real donations.  Details of these donations for 
the period July to September 2008 are reproduced as follows:- 
 
Financial Assistance  

 Amount  Recipient Donated Item Date 
 

$10,000.00  
Tweed Kenya Mentoring Program Budget Allocation 15/07/2008

 
$11,440.00  

Kingscliff Australian Volunteer Coast Guard 
Association 

Budget Allocation 30/07/2008

 $5,200.00  North Coast Academy of Sports Budget Allocation 30/07/2008
 $50.00  Uki Public School Donation - Schools Debate 07/08/2008

 $100.00  Murwillumbah Primary School Donation - Schools Debate 07/08/2008
 

$21,632.00  
Northern Rivers Inc Regional Arts Board Budget Allocation 26/08/2008

 $580.00  Banana Festival - Fashion Parade Hire Cat Walk 04/09/2008
 $1,000.00  Camp Quality First Round Donations 08/09 11/09/2008
 $2,000.00  Riding for the Disable NSW Tweed Valley 

Centre  
First Round Donations 08/09 11/09/2008

 $2,000.00  Murwillumbah Showground Trust First Round Donations 08/09 11/09/2008
 $1,848.00  Tweed Gold Coast Family History & Heritage 

Assoc Inc 
First Round Donations 08/09 11/09/2008

 $1,200.00  Uki Public Hall & Recreation Reserve Trust First Round Donations 08/09 11/09/2008
 $1,500.00  Mount Warning Community Pre School First Round Donations 08/09 11/09/2008
 $2,000.00  Crabbes Creek Community Hall Inc First Round Donations 08/09 11/09/2008
 $7,000.00  Speed on Tweed Festival First Round Donations 08/09 11/09/2008
 $7,000.00  Tweed Shire Senior Citizens Week Committee First Round Donations 08/09 11/09/2008
 $2,000.00  Gold Coast Malibu Club First Round Donations 08/09 11/09/2008
 $1,300.00  Murwillumbah Community Centre First Round Donations 08/09 11/09/2008
 $7,000.00  Tweed Banana Festival First Round Donations 08/09 11/09/2008
 $7,000.00  Wollumbin Aboriginal & Torres Strait Islander 

Community 
First Round Donations 08/09 11/09/2008

 $1,300.00  Emergency Services Day in the Park First Round Donations 08/09 11/09/2008
$83,150.00     
 
 Goods and/or Materials  

 Amount  Recipient Donated Item Date 
 $80.00  Mt St Patricks & St Josephs Schools 20 Shrubs 08/07/2008
 $68.00  St Anthonys School 17 Shrubs 22/07/2008
 $24.00  Clothiers Creek Volunteer 6 Shrubs 25/07/2008
 $96.00  Pottsville State School 12 Trees 29/07/2008
 $60.00  Tyalgum Public School 10 Shrubs 12/08/2008
 $48.00  Joey's Pouch Pre-School 6 Trees 19/08/2008
 $32.00  East Murwillumbah Public School 8 Shrubs 08/09/2008

 $150.00  Welcoming the Babies Ceremony 100 Tubestock 23/09/2008
 $558.00     
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 Provision of Labour and/or Plant & Equipment  
 Amount  Recipient Donated Item Date 
 $294.30 Murwillumbah Hospital Rally Provision of Labour & 

Council Plant 
11/07/2008

 $78.79 SES Kyogle Road Provision of Labour & 
Council Plant 

22/08/2008

 $325.48 Banana Festival Provision of Labour & 
Council Plant 

29/08/2008

 $570.48 Kanga Steiner (Tempory Fence - Fire) Provision of Labour & 
Council Plant 

26/09/2008

 $651.92 Life Education Van Relocation Provision of Labour & 
Council Plant 

July/Aug 
2008 

$34,239.31 Speed On Tweed Festival Provision of Labour & 
Council Plant 

Sept 2008 

$36,160.28     
 
 Rates   

 Amount  Recipient Donated Item Date 
 $286.30  Trustees Literary Institute Tyalgum Commerical Garbage Rates 

2008/2009 
11/09/2008

 $979.60  Bilambil Literary Society Council Rates 2008/2009 11/09/2008
 $1,335.58  Trustees Literary Institute Tyalgum Council Rates 2008/2009 11/09/2008
 $1,073.70  Legacy Club of Coolangatta/Tweed Heads Council Rates 2008/2009 11/09/2008
 $2,900.10  Legacy Club of Coolangatta/Tweed Heads Council Rates 2008/2009 11/09/2008
 $1,517.00  Uki Hall Reserve Trust Council Rates 2008/2009 11/09/2008
 $1,489.50  Trustees Burringbar School of Arts Council Rates 2008/2009 11/09/2008

 $682.30  Murwillumbah Autumn Club Inc Council Rates 2008/2009 11/09/2008
 $1,846.50  Twin Towns Police & Community Youth Club Council Rates 2008/2009 11/09/2008

 $746.70  Crabbes Crrek Hall Pty Ltd Council Rates 2008/2009 11/09/2008
 $7.38  Trustees Burringbar School of Arts Council Water Rates 

2008/2009 
11/09/2008

 $77.49  Tweed Coast Community Centre Council Water Rates 
2008/2009 

11/09/2008

 $17.22  Trustees Literary Institute Tyalgum Council Water Rates 
2008/2009 

11/09/2008

 $168.51  Twin Towns Police & Community Youth Club Council Water Rates 
2008/2009 

11/09/2008

$13,127.88     
 
 Tweed Link Advertising  

 Amount  Recipient Donated Item Date 
$121.50 Various Community Notices Advertising 01/07/2008
$54.00 Various Community Notices Advertising 08/07/2008
$74.25 Various Community Notices Advertising 15/07/2008
$67.50 Various Community Notices Advertising 22/07/2008

$209.25 Various Community Notices Advertising 29/07/2008
$74.25 Various Community Notices Advertising 05/08/2008
$81.00 Various Community Notices Advertising 12/08/2008
$81.00 Various Community Notices Advertising 19/08/2008
$67.50 Various Community Notices Advertising 02/09/2008

$108.00 Various Community Notices Advertising 09/09/2008
$81.00 Various Community Notices Advertising 23/09/2008

$202.50 Various Community Notices Advertising 30/09/2008
 $1,221.75     
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 Room Hire  
 Amount  Recipient Donated Item Date 

 $88.50  Writers Festival Room Hire - Murwillumbah 
Civic Centre 

29/07/2008

 $1,903.00  Banana Festival Room Hire - Murwillumbah 
Civic Centre 

30/08/2008

 $67.70  Murwillumbah Theatre Company Room Hire - Murwillumbah 
Civic Centre 

01/09/2008

 $67.70  Murwillumbah Theatre Company Room Hire - Murwillumbah 
Civic Centre 

03/09/2008

 $67.70  Murwillumbah Theatre Company Room Hire - Murwillumbah 
Civic Centre 

08/09/2008

 $183.20  Department of Education Room Hire - Murwillumbah 
Civic Centre 

11/09/2008

 $67.70  Murwillumbah Theatre Company Room Hire - Murwillumbah 
Civic Centre 

15/09/2008

 $67.70  Murwillumbah Theatre Company Room Hire - Murwillumbah 
Civic Centre 

17/09/2008

 $106.00  CWA Craft Show Room Hire - Murwillumbah 
Civic Centre 

20/09/2008

 $67.70  Murwillumbah Theatre Company Room Hire - Murwillumbah 
Civic Centre 

22/09/2008

 $67.70  Murwillumbah Theatre Company Room Hire - Murwillumbah 
Civic Centre 

23/09/2008

 $67.70  Murwillumbah Theatre Company Room Hire - Murwillumbah 
Civic Centre 

24/09/2008

 $135.40  Murwillumbah Theatre Company Room Hire - Murwillumbah 
Civic Centre 

28/09/2008

 $67.70  Murwillumbah Theatre Company Room Hire - Murwillumbah 
Civic Centre 

29/09/2008

 $67.70  Northern Rivers Symphony Orchestra Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

02/07/2008

 $83.60  Tweed Theatre Company Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

03/07/2008

 $370.00  NAIDOC Week Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

06/07/2008

 $83.60  Tweed Theatre Company Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

07/07/2008

 $67.70  Northern Rivers Symphony Orchestra Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

09/07/2008

 $83.60  Tweed Theatre Company Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

10/07/2008

 $383.00  NAIDOC Week Dinner Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

11/07/2008

 $109.50  Tweed Theatre Company Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

13/07/2008

 $97.50  Twin Towns Garden Club Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

14/07/2008

 $83.60  Tweed Theatre Company Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

14/07/2008

 $67.70  Northern Rivers Symphony Orchestra Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

16/07/2008

 $120.00  Tweed Quota Craft Show Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

19/07/2008

 $119.50  Northern Rivers Symphony Orchestra Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

20/07/2008

 $67.70  Northern Rivers Symphony Orchestra Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

23/07/2008

 $187.50  South Tweed Rotary Art Show Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

27/07/2008
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 Room Hire  
 Amount  Recipient Donated Item Date 

 $67.70  Tweed Theatre Company Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

28/07/2008

 $67.70  Tweed Theatre Company Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

31/07/2008

 $202.00  Tweed Heads Ladies Hospital Aux Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

04/08/2008

 $67.70  Tweed Theatre Company Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

04/08/2008

 $67.70  Tweed Theatre Company Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

07/08/2008

 $714.00  Antique Fair Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

10/08/2008

 $97.50  Twin Towns Garden Club Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

11/08/2008

 $67.70  Tweed Theatre Company Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

11/08/2008

 $67.70  Northern Rivers Symphony Orchestra Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

13/08/2008

 $67.70  Northern Rivers Symphony Orchestra Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

20/08/2008

 $77.70  Tweed Theatre Company Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

21/08/2008

 $67.90  Tweed Theatre Company Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

25/08/2008

 $67.70  Northern Rivers Symphony Orchestra Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

27/08/2008

 $67.90  Tweed Theatre Company Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

28/08/2008

 $67.70  Tweed Theatre Company Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

01/09/2008

 $67.70  Tweed Theatre Company Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

04/09/2008

 $97.50  Twin Towns Garden Club Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

08/09/2008

 $67.70  Tweed Theatre Company Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

11/09/2008

 $67.70  Tweed Theatre Company Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

15/09/2008

 $67.70  Tweed Theatre Company Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

18/09/2008

 $132.80  Twin Towns Garden Club Flower Show Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

19/09/2008

 $18.80  Twin Towns Garden Club Flower Show Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

20/09/2008

 $67.70  Tweed Theatre Company Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

22/09/2008

 $67.70  Tweed Theatre Company Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

25/09/2008

 $67.70  Tweed Theatre Company Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Civic Centre 

29/09/2008

 $27.90  Twin Towns Friends Room Hire - South Tweed 
HACC 

09/07/2008

 $27.00  Twin Towns Friends Room Hire - South Tweed 
HACC 

13/08/2008

 $27.00  Twin Towns Friends Room Hire - South Tweed 
HACC 

10/09/2008

 $138.00  NAIDOC Week Baby Show Hall Hire - South Tweed 
Heads Community Hall 

10/07/2008
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 Room Hire  
 Amount  Recipient Donated Item Date 

 $71.40  Twin Towns Friends Hall Hire - South Tweed 
Heads Community Hall 

30/07/2008

 $78.70  Tweed Heads Hospital Ladies Aux Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Meeting Room 

07/07/2008

 $67.30  Tweed Quota Graft Show Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Meeting Room 

18/07/2008

 $67.30  Tweed Quota Graft Show Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Meeting Room 

19/07/2008

 $67.30  Aborginal Advisory Committee Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Meeting Room 

01/08/2008

 $67.70  Tweed Theatre Company Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Meeting Room 

14/08/2008

 $67.30  South Sea Islander Meeting Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Meeting Room 

16/08/2008

 $57.30  Tweed Theatre Company Room Hire - Tweed Heads 
Meeting Room 

08/09/2008

 $8,341.10     
    

$142,559.01 Total Donations 1st Quarter (July, August, September 2008) 
 
 
LEGAL/RESOURCE/FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
UNDER SEPARATE COVER: 

Nil. 
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REPORTS FROM THE DIRECTOR ENGINEERING & OPERATIONS 

O11 [EO-OC] Renaming of Part of Public Road, Condong Street, Kunghur  
 
ORIGIN: 

Director Engineering & Operations 
 
 
FILE NO: GS5/1 Pt5 
 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: 

Council at its meeting of 15 July 2008, resolved to publicise its intention to rename 
Condong Street, Kunghur, as “Pomaderris Place” and allowed one month for objections 
to the proposal. 
 
Several objections were received, all of which requested that the road be named 
“Browns Lane”.  Firstly Council's policy on naming of public roads, derived from the 
guidelines set down by Geographical Names Board, notes that name duplication within 
the local government area should be avoided. Browns Lane is an existing road name 
within the Tweed Shire and the Department of Lands have advised Council that Browns 
Lane will not be regarded as an acceptable name due to this fact.  Secondly the purpose 
of renaming Condong Street, Kunghur is to avoid the confusion which has arisen from 
the duplication of this name within the shire. 
 
It would therefore be recommended that the name “Pomaderris Place” be adopted for the 
renaming purposes of Condong Street, Kunghur. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

That:- 
 

1. Council adopts the name of "Pomaderris Place", for renaming purposes 
of Condong Street, Kunghur; and 

 
2. The naming of the public road be gazetted under the provisions of the 

Roads (General) Regulation, 1994 and the Roads Act, 1993. 
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REPORT: 

As per Summary of Report.  The location plan is shown below for ease of referral:- 
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The road naming protocol used is as follows:- 
 
Council Road Naming Protocol 
 
Pursuant to Section 162 of the Roads Act 1993 (the Act), a roads authority may name 
and number all public roads for which it is the roads authority.  As defined under the Act 
a roads authority means a person or body that is, by or under this Act, declared to be a 
roads authority and, in relation to a particular public road, means the roads authority for 
that road.  Council is the roads authority for all roads that are not Crown Roads nor 
freeways or motorways. 
 
The Roads (General) Regulation 2000 sets out under Part 2, Division 2, the procedures 
required to be taken by a roads authority in the naming or renaming of a public road.  
The procedure requires public notice to be given of a proposed name inviting 
submissions, the receipt of submissions and notice to be given of any new road name to 
the relevant authorities. 
 
Council’s Road Naming Policy, adopted in November 2007, has been derived directly 
from the guidelines as set down by the Geographical Names Board, a copy of which is 
attached. 
 
Council, as the roads authority for the Tweed Shire, name and rename roads that 
currently exist as well as name those roads dedicated to Council in plans of subdivision. 
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When naming or renaming existing roads within the Shire the following procedure is 
followed; 
 
1. A written submission/request for the naming or renaming of a road is received by 

Council which will sometimes include a suggested name.  If no name has been 
suggested an advertisement will be placed in the Tweed Link seeking suitable 
submissions within a 30 day period.  All submissions received are checked against 
Councils Road Naming Policy to ensure that they are suitable. 

 
2. A report is then submitted to Council for consideration noting the relevant names 

and providing a recommendation. 
 
3. Upon approval by Council a further advertisement is placed in the Tweed Link of 

the proposed name and seeking submissions or objections to same within a 30 day 
period. 

 
4. Letters are sent to Department of Lands and Australia Post, being the relevant 

authorities, advising of the proposed road name seeking submissions or objections 
to same. 

 
5. If any objections are received and are in accordance with Councils Road Naming 

Policy a report is submitted to Council for consideration.  If Council resolve to select 
an alternate name then a further advertisement is placed in the Tweed Link of the 
proposed name (as per point 4). 

 
6. If no objections to the road name are received a report is sent to Council 

recommending that the road name be adopted and gazetted under the provisions of 
the Roads (General) Regulation, 1994 and the Roads Act 1993. 

 
7. Upon resolution the road name is advertised in the Government Gazette and the 

Tweed Link. 
 
8. Notification of the gazettal is then sent to the relevant authorities. 
 
In the case of new roads dedicated to Council in a plan of subdivision, delegated 
authority has been provided to the Development Assessment Manager to assess and 
approve the names as recommended by the relevant Council Officer. 
 
The process is very similar to that set out above however the developers of the 
subdivision are required to submit road names to Council for consideration.  It is 
suggested that these names follow a theme suitable to the area being subdivided and in 
the case of staged subdivisions that the theme be carried on throughout each stage.   
 
The names, upon submission, are checked against Councils Road Naming Policy to 
ensure that they are suitable.  A memo is then forwarded to the Manager of Development 
Assessment for further consideration and approval.  Once approved an advertisement is 
placed in the Tweed Link providing a period of 14 days to submit any objections to the 
new road names.  The relevant authorities are also notified of the proposed road names. 
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Should objections be received they will be considered in accordance with Councils Road 
Naming Policy and if substantial the developer will be requested to provide an alternate 
name and the process is started again. 
 
If no objections are received to the road names a further memo is sent to the Manager of 
Development Assessment recommending his/her approval to the gazettal of these road 
names.  Once approval has been received the road names are Gazetted and advertised 
in the Tweed Link and the relevant authorities are then notified. 
 
Together with the above requirements if a road name is suggested, either for an existing 
road or a new road, which is of Aboriginal derivation then approval is sought from the 
Local Aboriginal Land Council prior to any advertising or recommendations to Council.  
The Local Aboriginal Land Council will consider if the name is relevant to the area which 
includes, inter alia, local dialect.  If the Local Aboriginal Land Council approves the name 
then the process continues as normal, if however they object to the name then an 
alternate road name is sought. 
 
There are occasions where no suitable road names are suggested after advertising.  In 
these instances Council Officers utilise a list of suggested road names.  A copy of the list 
is attached for information purposes. 
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LEGAL/RESOURCE/FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 



 
OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING DATE:  TUESDAY 18 NOVEMBER 2008 

 
 

 
PAGE 136 

UNDER SEPARATE COVER/FURTHER INFORMATION: 

To view any "non confidential" attachments listed below, access the meetings link on Council's website 
www.tweed.nsw.gov.au or visit Council's offices at Tweed Heads or Murwillumbah (from Friday the week 
before the meeting) or Council's libraries (from Monday the week of the meeting). 
 
1. Confidential Attachments - Letters in objection (DW 1875576; 1882487; 

1884615). 
 

 
 
 

http://www.tweed.nsw.gov.au/
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O12 [EO-OC] Creation of Easement for Sewer Pump Station  
 
ORIGIN: 

Design 
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: 

The Riveroak Drive Sewer Pump Station 1022 was constructed in 1993 as part of the 
Housing Commission subdivision in West Murwillumbah.  The mechanical and electrical 
components of the pump station were sized to service the West Murwillumbah 
catchment, excluding the Bellevue Heights estate. 
 
With new subdivision developments, such as the Hundred Hills subdivision and 
Sovereign Heights subdivision coming on line, the existing mechanical and control 
equipment requires upgrading to service the expanded catchment.  This upgrade will 
require construction of a new electrical control building to be located above 1 in 100 year 
flood level and demolition of the existing electrical control tower as it is not large enough 
to contain the upgraded mechanical and control equipment. 
 
Sewer Pump Station 1022 is constructed on Lot 49 in DP 830595, a Public Reserve, 
vested in Council when the Housing Commission subdivision was registered in 1993.  
The Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) (“the Act”) commenced shortly thereafter and 
the land was classified as community land, pursuant to the Act, notwithstanding the 
existing sewage infrastructure within the parcel. 
 
Section 46 of the Act provides that an estate, lease or licence in respect of community 
land may be granted for the provision of public utilities and works associated with or 
ancillary to public utilities.  An “estate” in this context is an “interest, right or 
encumbrance”.  An easement, by definition is a “right enjoyed by the owner of one piece 
of land to carry out some limited activity (short of taking possession) on another piece of 
land”. 
 
It is intended to create an Easement for Pump Station variable width within Lot 49 in DP 
830595 to enable the construction of a new electrical control building, by the registration 
of a Transfer Granting Easement. 
 
It is necessary to resolve to approve the creation of the easement and to sign all 
documentation under the Common Seal of Council. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

That:- 
 
1. Council approves the creation of an Easement for Pump Station 

Variable Width within Lot 49 in DP 830595; and 
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2. All necessary documentation be executed under the Common Seal of 

Council. 



 
OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING DATE:  TUESDAY 18 NOVEMBER 2008 

 
 

 
PAGE 139 

 
REPORT: 

As per Summary of Report, the plan below shows the area subject of the proposed 
Easement for Pump Station Variable Width highlighted in the south western corner of Lot 
49:- 
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LEGAL/RESOURCE/FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
UNDER SEPARATE COVER/FURTHER INFORMATION: 

To view any "non confidential" attachments listed below, access the meetings link on Council's website 
www.tweed.nsw.gov.au or visit Council's offices at Tweed Heads or Murwillumbah (from Friday the week 
before the meeting) or Council's libraries (from Monday the week of the meeting). 
 
Nil. 
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O13 [EO-OC] Road Closure and Purchase West of Turnock Street  
 
ORIGIN: 

Design 
 
FILE NO: GR3/12/6 Pt4 
 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: 

Council has received an application to close and purchase part of an unformed road 
reserve, adjacent to and west of the Turnock/Quigan Street and Elrond Drive 
roundabout, Kingscliff. 
 
The application is in accordance with Council’s Policy for Road Closure and Private 
Purchase and it is recommended that Council approve the application subject to the 
written approval of the owner of the adjoining parcel being Lot 102 in DP 870722.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

That:- 
 
1. Council approves the closure of the road reserve, which runs north to 

south separating Lot 26D in DP 10715 from Lot 11 in DP 871753 and the 
road reserve which runs east to west separating Lot 11 in DP 871753 
from Lot 102 in DP 870722 subject to the written approval of the owner of 
Lot 102 in DP 870722; 

 
2. The applicant bears all the survey and legal costs and purchases the 

subject land as determined in value by a local registered valuer; 
 
3. The title of the closed road be consolidated with the adjacent land at the 

applicants cost; 
 
4. Easements be created over public authority reticulation services, if 

any; and 
 
5. All necessary documentation be executed under Common Seal of 

Council. 
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REPORT: 

Council has received an application to close and purchase part of an unformed road 
reserve, adjacent to and west of the Turnock/Quigan Street and Elrond Drive 
roundabout, Kingscliff. 
 
The applicant originally wrote to Council requesting the road closure on 12 February 
2008. This application was initially rejected as it was considered that the closure could be 
undertaken concurrently with any future development of the land.  The applicant then 
requested that the matter be reconsidered in a letter dated 24 October 2008. 
 
The applicant owns the majority of the land surrounding the subject road reserve and 
intends to incorporate the closed road with the surrounding land to facilitate potential 
development of the land which would include the construction of appropriate road 
corridors.  In accordance with Councils Road Closure policy an application will be 
considered for closure of a road reserve where the proponent is opening a more 
negotiable corridor serving the same access role. 
 
It is a requirement of all applications made to Department of Lands for the closure of 
public roads that written evidence be provided by the applicant that any other adjoining 
land owners have no objection to the closure and purchase of the road by the applicant.  
An adjoining land owner must also be provided with the opportunity to apply for the 
closure and purchase of part of any road reserve which adjoins both properties. 
 
The southern section of the road reserve which runs west from Turnock Street separates 
Lot 102 in DP 870722 from the applicants parcel Lot 11 in DP 871753.  The applicant 
would therefore be required to provide to Council written evidence that the owner of Lot 
102 does not object to the closure and purchase of the subject road or notification of a 
concurrent application. A section of the road reserve partly constructed and forming part 
of the roundabout will be excluded from the portion of the road reserve proposed to be 
closed. 
 
The application is in accordance with Council’s Policy for Road Closure and Private 
Purchase and it is recommended that Council approve the application subject to the 
written approval of the owner of the adjoining parcel being Lot 102 in DP 870722. 
 



 
OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING DATE:  TUESDAY 18 NOVEMBER 2008 

 
 

 
PAGE 143 

The plan below shows the subject road reserve sought to be closed and purchased: 
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LEGAL/RESOURCE/FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
UNDER SEPARATE COVER/FURTHER INFORMATION: 

To view any "non confidential" attachments listed below, access the meetings link on Council's website 
www.tweed.nsw.gov.au or visit Council's offices at Tweed Heads or Murwillumbah (from Friday the week 
before the meeting) or Council's libraries (from Monday the week of the meeting). 
 
Nil. 
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O14 [EO-OC] South Tweed Skate Park  
 
ORIGIN: 

Recreation Services 
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: 

In August 2008, Council let a contract for the detailed design and construction of a skate 
facility at South Tweed Heads. The design is based on user consultation and is to allow 
for staged development. Stage 1 comprises of a ‘bowl’ component and will fully consume 
available funds.  Stage 2 is currently designed as a ‘street plaza’ component but remains 
unfunded and will not be constructed in the foreseeable future. 
 
The report is provided for Councillors information. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

That this report be received and noted. 
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REPORT: 

Council, in consultation with representatives of the local youth and licensed clubs, has 
been planning the construction of a skate facility on an area of community land on the 
corner of Minjungbal Drive and Heffron Street, South Tweed Heads. Funding of 
$250,000 was available consisting of $75,000 from the clubs through the CDSE program 
and $175,000 from Council. 
 
A concept plan was undertaken through a community consultation process which 
identified a facility comprising of two distinct sections being a 'bowl section' and a ‘street 
section' connected by a skate-able path. However, the estimate for the whole facility was 
well in excess of available funding. The facility was therefore considered on a staged 
basis to allow for the construction of at least one section with the available funding. 
 
In 2007, Council was encouraged to apply for funding through the Regional Partnerships 
Program for funding assistance to enable the construction of both stages of the facility. 
Council also applied for funding through the NSW Department of Sport and Recreation 
Capital Assistance Grants. The applications were for $100,000 and $30,000 respectively. 
A condition of the Regional Partnerships Program is that no works can commence or 
contracts be entered into until the funding is announced and funding contracts signed. 
 
On 16 October 2007, Council received a letter from the then Federal Minister; Hon Mark 
Vaile advising that approval had been given for up to $110,000 (GST inclusive) under the 
Regional Partnerships Program for the SK8 Tweed project. However, the funding was 
conditional on a commitment of co-funding from the NSW Department of Sport and 
Recreation. The offer stipulated that no expenditure commitments should be entered into 
in reliance upon the funding until the agreement has been executed. This was reinforced 
in communications with Department officers. 
 
Prior to the funding agreement being executed, the Federal elections resulted in a 
change of Government. Council subsequently received a letter dated 13 May 2008 from 
the Hon Gary Gray advising Council that the offer for funding from the former 
Government had been withdrawn. 
 
Council then received another letter from the Hon Gary Gray dated 29 May 2008 
advising that the Government had reviewed their advice of 13 May 2008 and that the 
project would be eligible for funding if it is satisfied the project meets the Regional 
Partnerships Program criteria and the Council had entered into commitments in good 
faith based on the advise of the previous Government. 
 
Council then received a letter dated 1 August 2008 from Department of Infrastructure, 
Transport, Regional Development and Local Government advising that it is ineligible for 
funding for the South Tweed Skatepark as announced under the Regional Partnerships 
Program as it was unable to demonstrate that commitments were entered into in good 
faith based on the advice of the previous government. 
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In summary, Council did not enter into a contract for the construction of the skate facility 
prior to the election to comply with the eligibility requirements of the former Federal 
Government. The current Federal Government has subsequently advised that because 
Council did not enter into a contract for construction of the facility prior to the election it is 
ineligible for the funding by the current Federal Government. 
 
Current Status 
 
After confirmation in August 2008 that the amount available for the facility was $280,000 
being $75,000 CDSE, $175,000 Council and $30,000 NSW Department Sport and 
Recreation, Council proceeded with a contract with Convic Skateparks for detail design 
and construction.  The design is to cater for a staged construction process with the first 
stage being constructed with the funds available.  Construction of Stage 2 would be 
subject to additional funding being available in the future. 
 
A Skate Bowl catering for beginner level skaters and intermediate was determined as the 
most suitable option for Stage 1. Detailed survey of the site has been undertaken and a 
plan developed that incorporates the requirements for both bowl and street elements.  
The design allows for staged construction in a more constrained site than the original 
concept plans. 
 
Stage 1 of the skate park in the current Design & Construct contract includes:- 
 
− Skate Bowl, steel coping, drainage 
− Entry steps and pavement 
− Seating, rubbish bin and drinking fountain 
− Entry signage with conditions of use panel 
 
Included in the detailed concept plans are illustrations of possible landscape treatments.  
These works are not funded within the current contract and are estimated to cost an 
extra $190,000.00 and are therefore unfunded and will not proceed at this time. 
 
• These extra landscape concepts include:- 
 

o Integrated refuges/viewing areas 
o Entry ramps complying with DDA requirements are proposed at the periphery 
o Feature seating, hand rails and barriers to control activity and delineate 

between active use and general pedestrian access 
o Shade structures in two locations 
o Adjacent BBQ area for general parkwide 
o Realigned bike path 
o Integrated planting and shade trees 

 
Stage 2 of the Skate Park (instead of the 'street section' proposed in the concept plans) 
is a connecting path with sculptural banks and ledges integrating art work. This is 
proposed to be a 70m long skateable ‘urban plaza’ styled skate path and is estimated to 
cost $92,000.00.  This part of the Skate Park as well as the extra landscaping can be 
added at some later date if and when funds become available. 
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LEGAL/RESOURCE/FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
UNDER SEPARATE COVER/FURTHER INFORMATION: 

To view any "non confidential" attachments listed below, access the meetings link on Council's website 
www.tweed.nsw.gov.au or visit Council's offices at Tweed Heads or Murwillumbah (from Friday the week 
before the meeting) or Council's libraries (from Monday the week of the meeting). 
 
1. South Tweed Skate Facility Convic Draft Design Layout (DW 1928506). 
 

 
 
 

http://www.tweed.nsw.gov.au/


 
OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING DATE:  TUESDAY 18 NOVEMBER 2008 

 
 

 
PAGE 149 

 

REPORTS FROM THE DIRECTOR COMMUNITY & NATURAL RESOURCES 

O15 [CNR-OC] Cooperative Management of Cobaki Broadwater and 
Catchment – Memorandum of Understanding  

 
ORIGIN: 

Natural Resource Management  
 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: 

A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) has been developed in conjunction with the 
NSW Department of Environment and Climate Change for the cooperative management 
of Cobaki Broadwater and its catchment. 
 
This MOU provides a formal mechanism for coordination and integration by the various 
land managers and other stakeholders and will complement the Management Plan 
currently being developed by the Tweed River Committee on behalf of Tweed Shire 
Council. 
 
The MOU establishes the Cobaki Coordinating Group (CCG), to be facilitated by the 
Tweed River Committee/Tweed Shire Council, with meetings to be held twice a year.  
The CCG will be convened through the Tweed River Committee and be chaired by the 
convenor of the Tweed River Committee.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

That Council:- 
 
1. Signs the Memorandum of Understanding for the cooperative 

management of Cobaki Broadwater with amendments:- 
 

a) requiring community representation (two members) on the Cobaki 
Coordinating Group. 

 
b) stating that the Cobaki Coordinating Group is convened through 

the Tweed River Committee and not a subgroup of the Tweed River 
Committee. 

 
2. Writes to all parties advising that Council will support the process with a 

view towards meeting in early 2009. 
 
3. Calls for expressions of interest from the community for two community 

representatives of the Cobaki Coordinating Group. 
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REPORT: 

A Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) has been developed in conjunction with the 
NSW Department of Environment and Climate Change for the cooperative management 
of Cobaki Broadwater and its catchment. 
 
A range of land tenures exist across the Broadwater and its catchment.  The Broadwater 
and surrounding lands are subject to a number of existing and proposed land uses and 
activities.  Incremental development and disparate management regimes have 
contributed to habitat loss and resource degradation, potentially compromising the 
values and beneficial uses of the area. 
 
This MoU provides a formal mechanism for coordination and integration by the various 
land managers and other stakeholders and will complement the Management Plan 
currently being developed by the Tweed River Committee on behalf of Tweed Shire 
Council. 
 
The MOU establishes the Cobaki Coordinating Group (CCG), to be facilitated by the 
Tweed River Committee/Tweed Shire Council, with meetings to be held twice a year.  
The CCG will be convened through the Tweed River Committee and be chaired by the 
convenor of the Tweed River Committee.  
 
The purpose of the MOU is to:- 
 
1. Identify those Government agencies and other bodies with responsibilities or major 

roles in the planning, management or utilisation of the Cobaki Broadwater and 
catchment; 

2. Articulate a set of fundamental overarching principles to guide the parties planning, 
management and utilisation of the area; and 

3. Provide a framework for the parties to foster and enhance communication, 
cooperation and collaboration related to the planning, management and utilisation 
of the area. 

There are two concerns with the proposed MOU; one being the lack of community 
representation, and the second being the statement that the CCG is a subgroup of the 
Tweed River Committee.  It is suggested that the community should have representation 
on the CCG in the form of two members elected by the CCG.  It is also recommended 
that the CCG could not operate as a subgroup of the Tweed River Committee as this 
would make it a committee of Council and that the Tweed River Committee could act as 
the convener of the group. 
 
LEGAL/RESOURCE/FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
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UNDER SEPARATE COVER/FURTHER INFORMATION: 

To view any "non confidential" attachments listed below, access the meetings link on Council's website 
www.tweed.nsw.gov.au or visit Council's offices at Tweed Heads or Murwillumbah (from Friday the week 
before the meeting) or Council's libraries (from Monday the week of the meeting). 
 
1. Cooperative Management of Cobaki Broadwater and Catchment Memorandum of 

Understanding (DW 1893550) 
 

 
 
 

http://www.tweed.nsw.gov.au/
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O16 [CNR-OC] Amwil Park Community Facility - Future Use  
 
ORIGIN: 

Community & Cultural Services 
 
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: 

Murwillumbah Boxing Club has been operating from Amwil Park, Murwillumbah, for 
approximately 6 years.  The Hall was leased by the Scout Association to the 
Murwillumbah Boxing Club.  Rent was fixed at $40 per week for the first 4 years.  In 
recognition of the "not-for-profit" nature and philosophy of the Boxing Club and the 
number of mostly disadvantaged young people supported through this organisation there 
has been no rent charged in the past two years.  
 
The Scout Association offered the Murwillumbah Boxing Club the use of the Amwil Park 
premises when they in turn relocated to the Brisbane Street Hall.  The Boxing Club is 
used by up to 10 young people each afternoon at a fee of $5.00.  All equipment and 
materials are supplied by the Boxing Club as are all travel expenses incurred in 
participation in competition.  The Club would be arguably non viable if provision of all 
materials and expenses continued and a rental fee was introduced. 
 
During the Murwillumbah Boxing Clubs tenancy Tweed Shire Council has incurred no 
costs specific to this property.  Insurance cover applies as per other facilities of this 
nature. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

That: 
 
1. Council approves entering into a Lease with Murwillumbah Boxing 

Club for the premises located at Amwil Park, 9 Amwil Avenue, 
Murwillumbah for a term of two years at a lease fee of $1.00 per 
annum including maintenance responsibilities. 

 
2. All documents to be executed under the Common Seal of Council. 
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REPORT: 

Murwillumbah Boxing Club has been operating from Amwil Park, 9 Amwil Avenue, 
Murwillumbah (being Lot 19 DP 21679), for approximately 6 years.  The Hall was leased 
by the Scout Association to the Murwillumbah Boxing Club.  Rent was fixed at $40 per 
week for the first 4 years.  In recognition of the Not-for-Profit nature and philosophy of the 
Boxing Club and the number of mostly disadvantaged young people supported through 
this organisation there has been no rent charged in the past two years.  
 
The Boxing Club was established in an area under the Murwillumbah Gym and operated 
there for some years. The building is very prone to flooding, mostly from drains backing 
up and as a consequence the gym was often wet and muddy.  The Scout Association 
offered the Murwillumbah Boxing Club the use of the Amwil Park premises when they in 
turn relocated to the Brisbane Street Hall.  The Boxing Club is used by up to 10 young 
people each afternoon at a fee of $5.00.  All equipment and materials are supplied by the 
Boxing Club as are all travel expenses incurred in participation in competition.  The Club 
would be arguably non viable if provision of all materials and expenses continued and a 
rental fee was introduced.  
 
The Manager of the Murwillumbah Boxing Club has personally undertaken costs and 
services to the Amwil Park property as follows: 
 

• Payment of electricity accounts 
• Painting internal and external walls 
• Supply of new guttering 
• Internal renovations including strengthening of walls 
• Replacement of window panes (mower damage) 
• Regular cleaning of building, toilet and shower facilities 
• Cleaning materials 
• Security watch in partnership with neighbours to Amwil Park 

 
During the Murwillumbah Boxing Clubs tenancy Tweed Shire Council has incurred no 
costs specific to this property.  Insurance cover applies as per other facilities of this 
nature. 
 
The Boxing Club's Manager has supplied proof of current membership of the Far North 
Coast Amateur Boxing Association and their insurance coverage by OAMPS Insurance 
Brokers. 
 
LEGAL/RESOURCE/FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
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UNDER SEPARATE COVER/FURTHER INFORMATION: 

To view any "non confidential" attachments listed below, access the meetings link on Council's website 
www.tweed.nsw.gov.au or visit Council's offices at Tweed Heads or Murwillumbah (from Friday the week 
before the meeting) or Council's libraries (from Monday the week of the meeting). 
 
Nil. 
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O17 [CNR-OC] Tweed Community Options - Annual Report 2007/2008  
 
ORIGIN: 

Community & Cultural Services 
 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: 

Tweed Community Options has experience significant growth over the past five years.  
Since 2005/2006 an annual report, based on the case management activities and the 
statistics of clients receiving services utilising Commonwealth and/ State Grant funds, is 
made available to Council Members and the wider community via Council’s website.  
 
The report for the financial year, 2007/2008 is now ready for distribution.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Tweed Community Options Annual Report for 2007/2008 be placed 
on Council’s website under the banner “Tweed Community Options”. 
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REPORT: 

Introduction: 
During the period, July 2007 through to 30 June 2008, the activities and achievements of 
Tweed Community Options, and its capacity to respond to the needs of the HACC client 
group (who identify as having complex care requirements) needing priority of access to 
the HACC service system, produced impressive results given the level of core funding for 
case management that has historically made up the Grant budget for case management 
work. 
 
Client requirements for linkages into the HACC service system, together with attention to 
the other factors that impact on client capacity to remain living at home safely, (avoiding 
premature entry into the residential service system), provided challenges to the case 
managers who work at Tweed Community Options. In particular priority listing and review 
of referrals on the wait list became a constant challenge to ensure fairness and equity of 
access to available resources. 
 
Minister Keneally, Minister, the Department of Ageing Disability and HomeCare 
(DADHC), announced on 16th June 2008, that additional HACC growth funds of 
$150,000 would be allocated to Tweed Shire Council to enhance the existing Grant 
budget they have for Tweed Community Options. This amount now becomes part of our 
recurrent funding from DADHC. In the coming financial year 2008/2009 the growth funds 
will allow Tweed Community Options to have the capacity to provide more speedy 
access to case management support for HACC eligible residents of the Tweed Shire by 
having more staff and resources. Further it will ensure that a reasonable level of support 
is available to eligible and priority clients who are in need of case management. 
 
Major Achievements: 
 

• Tweed Community Options commenced working with the 2 year Grant for the new 
Commonwealth and State initiative, Support Coordination Project (for Older 
Parent Carers), by implementing the service across the Far North Coast, in 
partnership with Clarence Valley Community Options and Richmond Community 
Options. It is a two year project funded by State and the Commonwealth 
Governments to support ‘hidden’ carers and low level service users who are 
ageing and also parenting a son or daughter who has a disability. Case Managers 
participated in the review of the draft Guidelines for this project and participated in 
workshops and meetings with other NSW providers of this service. 

• Case Managers commenced providing Podiatry services to HACC eligible clients 
who responded to our advertising that funds are available in this financial year to 
assist those with complex care needs who are unable to access podiatry services. 
Up to 102 clients received services and a wait list at the end of the year will 
ensure the final funding allocation of $20,000 will also be utilized quickly. These 
funds are from DADHC via an agreement with NSW Health and then allocated to 
Tweed Community Options.  
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• The Veterans funding remaining as at the end of June 2007, was approved to be 
carried over into this financial year. Therefore an additional 50 Veterans received 
case management services utilizing these funds. The main needs of this group 
were that of social support and linkages into other local HACC services. 

• Tweed Community Options continue to provide ComPacks services utilizing 
funding  from NSW Health. These services focused on referrals from the Tweed 
Hospital, but later in the year the Murwillumbah Hospital also. This work 
commenced the financial year with a contract to provide 188 ComPacks clients 
with services on discharge from hospital, but increased to 300 in September 2007, 
and later again to 600 in February 2008. These services will continue at 600 
clients per year until the review of the contract with NSW Health in July 2010. 

• Tweed Shire Council accepted funding in May 2007 for a one-off Episodic case 
management project  - most of the 34 clients who received services via this 
funding from DADHC were provided support during the 2007/2008 financial year.  

 
Other Activities and Achievements this year included: 
 

• Continued implementing the FileMaker electronic Case Management system 

• Staff attended the Annual ComPacks Review Meeting in Sydney along with all 
other COPS projects and hospital staff who implement this work in their areas. 

• Tweed Case Managers participated in Teleconferences relevant to ComPacks 
and the review of ComPacks Guidelines, along with other COPS projects. 

• Disability and Aged Community Care Forums are held monthly and or bi-monthly 
in the Tweed Shire and attended by Tweed Community Options. 

• DADHC coordinated Respite Forum that Tweed Community Options’ staff 
participated at, together with also attending its subsequent meetings that aimed to 
review and improve the coordination of access for clients into the various types of 
respite funding available to frail aged and people with disabilities and their carers. 

• Case Managers attended and contributed to the DADHC facilitated HACC 
Triennial Plan 2008/2011 ‘planning day’ in August to advocate for the unmet 
needs of HACC clients living in the Tweed Shire.  

• Participated in various surveys and information sessions relevant to current 
issues, such as: difficulties associated with the growing number of HACC clients 
who identify as ‘financial disadvantage’ (in order to advocate for a review and 
policy redesign aimed at supporting this client group who otherwise decline 
services based largely on an inability to manager the fees associated with the 
services).  



 
OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING DATE:  TUESDAY 18 NOVEMBER 2008 

 
 

 
PAGE 160 

• Staff participated in the NSW Health initiative of ‘Clinical Health Re-design’ aimed 
at identifying improved strategies to support the efficiency and quality of hospital 
services including discharge planning (which links to ComPacks and community 
care services). 

• Staff participated in survey of DADHC funded services that aimed to identify skills 
and training needs of the industry. 

• Community Options’ service agreements allow for continued quality care to be 
available via these contracts, with more than 20 local service providers, who on 
our behalf directly implement HACC services such as domestic support, personal 
care, shopping support, transport, meals preparation etc. for clients across our 
various funding streams. Monitoring of the agreements is ongoing at Tweed 
Community Options. 

• Staff attended all Regional Meetings of the network of Community Options 
Projects in the Northern Region of NSW.  

• Tweed Community Options hosted the regional meeting in May 2008. 

• In October Tweed Community Options successfully submitted an Open Tender to 
DADHC – responding to their advertisement of $150,000 recurrent funding 
available for HACC Case Management for the Tweed Shire. These funds were 
identified as required to bring the Tweed Shire in line with other similar projects as 
Tweed had been under-funded for many years.  

• Tweed Community Options continues to participate as a consortium member of 
the STOP Program (Short term Time Out respite funding) which includes its 
allocation meetings.  

• Staff attend the FROC (Flexible Respite Options Consortium) which meet 
regularly to review and allocate respite funds across the Northern Region, 
including Tweed Shire.  

• Tweed Shire Council management assisted Tweed Community Options staff to 
lobby for the outcome of the Open Tender for additional HACC case management 
funding as the need for these resources became critical at times during the 
second half of this financial year. These funds were announced mid June 2008 
and subsequently allocated to Tweed Shire Council. They now enhance the 
original funding that Council has for HACC Case Management service to the 
Tweed Shire.  

• Staff work closely with NSW Health staff in ACAT Team, in-hospital services and 
in Community Health services, to ensure all potential referrals and or service 
system supports are considered when working in the disability and aged care 
sectors.  

• Tweed Community Options further strengthened its intake and screening process 
to ensure transparency and accuracy with assessment of referrals and priority on 
our wait list for HACC Case Management support. 
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• Staff attended many training programs relating to skills development, to ensure 
staff are able to respond to the contemporary needs of HACC clients and provide 
best practice care planning and monitoring of resources and supports. These 
included: Elder Abuse Training; Mental Health First Aid training; Assessment Tool 
Training (ONI); Overview of Depression workshop; Continence workshop; Crisis 
Housing workshop; ‘Stronger Communities’ presentation; Life Moves Information 
session; and Council provided increased level of support to enable 5 Case 
Managers to attain post graduate certificate qualifications through Charles Stuart 
University (external enrolment). 

• Other training included: Carers NSW Conference; Case Management Post 
Graduate Courses (both TAFE and University levels); 

• Staff hosted many information sessions on contemporary matters relating to our 
HACC work, including: Mental Health, Carers’ services; Down Syndrome; 

• Staff attended and participated in the Seniors Expo held in Murwillumbah by 
Tweed Shire Council in May 2008. 

 
Identified Unmet Needs for the Tweed Shire: 
Tweed Community Options participates in forums and meetings aimed at data collection 
and the general identification of gaps in services that are required to support the Aged 
and Disability clients and their carers who are living in the community. Many of these 
services are available but not able to meet the needs due to being ‘at capacity’ with their 
resources. They have been identified by our case managers and include: 
 

• Dementia Day Care 

• Financial Support 

• Occupational therapy 

• Affordable Housing options 

• Shopping Support 

• Increase funding for Home Maintenance or Modifications 

• Social Support 

• Affordable Transport options (Community Transport) 

• Palliative Care affordable services and Hospice services 

• Additional HACC funded Lawn Mowing and Domestic Help services  

• Experienced support staff to work with Mental Health clients. 
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Core Business:   – DADHC Funded Case Management 
 
Number of clients receiving 
services as at 1 July 2007 

 
68 

 

 
Number of Referrals 
requesting COPS case 
management received during 
the year. 

 
316 

 
  
  

 
Number of Referrals not taken 
into any of our case 
management services. 

 
54 

 

 
Average number at any one 
time, of high priority clients on 
a wait list for a case manager 
to assist them. 

 
4-6 

 

 
Number of Clients as still 
receiving services as at 30 
June 2008. 

 
51 

 

 
Total Number of clients who 
received case management 
services utilizing our core 
funding or the episodic one-off 
funds or the Support 
Coordination Project funds. 

 
330 

 
(last year 168 Clients) 

 
Number of frail aged clients 
who received services  
 

 
211 
 

 
(that is, 211 of the 330 clients) 

 
Number of clients with a 
disability who received 
services 

 
119  
 

 
(that is, 119 of the 330 clients) 

 
Other Business: 
 
Total number of Aboriginal 
clients from Tweed Shire that 
were assisted through the 
partnership funding held by 
Richmond Community Options 

 
11 

 

 
Total number of clients 
assisted with the DADHC 
Podiatry Funding in this 
financial year (note: two year’s 

 
102 

 
An additional 19 referrals were on a 
wait list for services once further 
funding became available. 
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funds available in this 
particular 12 month period 
 
Total number of clients 
assisted with the DADHC 
(Support Coordination 
Project Funding Tweed Only) 
in this financial year 

 
8 

 

 
Total number of clients 
assisted with the DADHC 
Veterans Funding in this 
financial year 

 
50 

 

 
Total number of clients 
assisted with the NSW Health 
Funding for COMPACKS 
Services  - referrals from the 
Tweed and Murwillumbah 
Hospitals 

 
310 

 

 
Total number of clients who 
received services via the 
Episodic Case Management 
funding grant 

 
34 

 

 
 
Total number of formal complaints 
received across all projects in the 
financial period  

 
                                  2 

 
 
Total number of clients who received 
services from Tweed Community Options 
during the financial year, 1 July 2007 to 30 
June 2008    

 
 
                     845 

 
 
Staffing and Funding Levels: 
 
The following staffing positions were filled throughout the financial year: 
 

• Coordinator 35 hours per week 

• Two Case Managers working 28 hours per week from September 2007 
(previously working 35 hours per week) 

• One Case Manager working a contracted for 28 hours per week (actually 
averaging 35 hours per week) 
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• One Case Manager working a contracted minimum 21 hours per week (actually 
averaging 28 hours per week 

• One Case Manager working a contracted minimum 14 hours per week (actually  
working up to 28 hours most weeks) 

• Three casual case managers working up to 28 hours per week (average 21 hours 
per week)  

• One Administration and Care Coordination Officer working 28 hours per week 

• One Care Coordination Officer working 35  hours per week most weeks (some at 
28 hrs) 

• Administration Assistant working as required 

• Finance Officer working 35 hours per week commencing in January 2008 (prior to 
this finance officer’s work was shared between Coordinator, Administration 
Officer, Care Coordination Officer and Council’s Grants Officer) 

 

Summary: 
Statistics within this report demonstrate that resources for case management hours for 
Intake; care planning; care implementation, care coordination, and monitoring; then case 
closure were utilized to a maximum given the outcomes for the 330 clients receiving 
services in the DADHC funded case management; and 310 clients receiving services in 
the NSW Health funded ComPacks service; together with 205 clients receiving services 
across other funded programs at Tweed Community Options – allowing 845 people to 
receive support during the financial year. 
 
This high level of case management support and allocation /links to available resources 
has not occurred at anywhere near this level in past years. The staff at Tweed 
Community Options consists of a strong multi- disciplinary team of case managers. They 
are dedicated to ensuring that the most vulnerable members of the community, who are 
also eligible for services within the various funding Guidelines of our Grants, have priority 
of access to support. The work of our ComPacks services continues to grow, as it 
strengthens the available supports to patients who are discharging from The Tweed 
Hospital. It also enables The Tweed Hospital and the community care system to improve 
supporting those community members who require community care services to be 
planned for on discharge from hospital. 
 
LEGAL/RESOURCE/FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
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UNDER SEPARATE COVER/FURTHER INFORMATION: 

To view any "non confidential" attachments listed below, access the meetings link on Council's website 
www.tweed.nsw.gov.au or visit Council's offices at Tweed Heads or Murwillumbah (from Friday the week 
before the meeting) or Council's libraries (from Monday the week of the meeting). 
 
Nil. 
 

 
 
 

http://www.tweed.nsw.gov.au/
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O18 [CNR-OC] Urgent Need for a Hospice in Tweed Shire  
 
ORIGIN: 

Community & Cultural Services 
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: 

The NSW Cancer Registry 2000-04 identified that the overall numbers of people with 
cancer on the Far North Coast of NSW were "Greater than the NSW average".  In 2006, 
a network of representatives working in palliative care was established to assess the 
palliative care needs in Tweed.  The multi-disciplinary team of professionals identified an 
urgent need for a hospice in Tweed.  
 
In 2007, it was identified by the network that The Bright Side of Life in Murwillumbah, a 
purpose-built respite facility for people with cancer, already fulfilled infrastructure 
requirements of a hospice, and much of the professional care, support groups and 
equipment were already established. 
 
The Bright Side of Life is a purpose-built facility nestled amongst sub-tropical rainforest 
on 7.5 acres in Dulguigan, 10kms from Murwillumbah.  Owned and Managed by RN 
Gillian Cooper, The Bright Side of Life has operated for over 5 years as a respite centre 
for people with cancer, and established a well-respected record of professional care for 
both respite and palliative/end of life care.  Much of this care was funded by the 
generosity of Ms Cooper.  
 
In December 2007 a Steering Committee was established, and in January 2008, a 
proposal to restructure The Bright Side of Life to government-funded hospice status was 
forwarded to relevant State and Federal Ministers.  The offer has been open for ten 
months.  The proposal identified the need for recurrent funding of $1.55 million per 
annum to operate the 4-bed facility as a hospice.  This included annual rental of the 
facility of $110,000.  
 
In May 2008, the State Government acknowledged the proposal and advised they would 
not be responding to the offer. 
 
In June 2008, the office of the Federal Minister for Health and Ageing, Nicola Roxon, 
acknowledged receipt of the proposal, and advised The Bright Side of Life would be 
informed of developments.  Ms Cooper has advised that, to date, no further 
correspondence has been received from Minister Roxon's office. 
 
Unfortunately Ms Cooper’s health is now compromised and The Bright Side of Life has 
been placed on the open market for $1.69 million.  Owing to Ms Cooper’s ill health, 
Council is advised that all communication regarding this matter be referred to Ms 
Meredith Dennis, President, Tweed Palliative Support Inc. 
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RECOMMENDATION: 

That Council: 
 
1. Thanks Ms Gillian Cooper for the time, funds and effort she has put into 

providing respite and end of life care to the people of Tweed Shire. 
 
2. Writes to relevant Federal Ministers to identify the urgent need for a 

hospice in Tweed, and request consideration that the Federal 
Government purchase The Bright Side of Life and provide ongoing 
funding to operate the facility as a hospice for the people of Tweed 
Shire. 

 
3. Writes to the relevant State Minister requesting reconsideration of their 

non support for funding the proposal to establish The Bright Side of Life 
as a Hospice serving the Tweed Shire and surrounding districts. 
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REPORT: 

Council is advised there is an urgent need to establish a hospice in Tweed Shire.  A 
hospice is a facility that provides specialised care for people diagnosed with a life-
threatening illness and who are near the end of life and require palliative care.  
 
The NSW Cancer Registry 2000-04 identified that the overall numbers of people with 
cancer on the Far North Coast of NSW were "Greater than the NSW average".  
 
In 2006, The Bright Side of Life, in partnership with Tweed Palliative Support Inc, 
established a network of representatives to assess the palliative care needs in Tweed.  
Working with a multi-disciplinary team of professionals it was identified that, from the 
Queensland border to Newcastle in NSW, there are no accredited "stand-alone" hospice 
facilities and that a hospice service was a glaring omission for our community.  
 
In mid 2007, it was identified that The Bright Side of Life, a purpose-built respite facility 
near Murwillumbah for people with cancer, already fulfilled infrastructure requirements of 
a hospice, and much of the professional care, support groups and equipment were 
already established.  In short, The Bright Side of Life, over the years, had evolved into a 
hospice in all but name and funding.  
 
In December 2007 a Steering Committee of relevant professionals was established to 
oversee the restructure of The Bright Side of Life into an accredited hospice. 
 
Established in 2003, The Bright Side of Life is a purpose-built facility nestled amongst 
sub-tropical rainforest on 7.5 acres in Dulguigan, 10kms from Murwillumbah.  Owned and 
Managed by RN Gillian Cooper, The Bright Side of Life has operated for over 5 years as 
a respite centre for people with cancer, and established a well-respected record of 
professional care for both respite and palliative/end of life care.  It is noted that, owing to 
a lack of government respite funding for palliative care, much of this professional care 
was provided free over the years by the generosity of Ms Cooper. 
 
In January 2008, while The Bright Side of Life was still operating, a proposal to 
restructure the facility to government funded hospice status was forwarded to relevant 
Ministers within both State and Federal Governments – including the Federal Minister for 
Health & Ageing Nicola Roxon, the State Member for Health Reba Meagher, and the 
Minister assisting the Minister for Health (cancer) Verity Firth.  A copy of the proposal 
was sent to the Minister for Ageing Justine Elliot for her information. The proposal was 
supported by Thomas George, State Member for Lismore and Geoff Provest, State 
Member for Tweed who both visited the facility. 
 
In January 2008, Ms Cooper was hospitalised and, owing to diagnosis, advised the 
Steering Committee she was unable to continue to provide care for patients requiring 
respite/end of life care at The Bright Side of Life.  Ms Cooper, rather than selling the 
facility, decided to keep open the offer to the Federal & State Governments to lease The 
Bright Side of Life from her and establish a state-of-the-art hospice in Tweed.  The offer 
has now been open for ten months.  Ministers who received the proposal were advised 
of Ms Cooper’s illness and the need for timely response. 
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The proposal outlined the cost-effective benefits for the government to lease and "take-
over" an existing building and run The Bright Side of Life as a hospice.  It was identified 
this would alleviate pressure on local hospitals, and provide a more appropriate palliative 
care service in Tweed. 
 
The proposal (with amendments) identified the need for recurrent funding of $1.55 million 
per annum to operate the 4-bed facility as a hospice.  This included annual rental of the 
facility from Ms Cooper of $110,000.  As with many hospices, a Management Committee 
would oversee the running/staffing of the hospice, and additional income would be 
sourced from bequests, fundraising and grants.  Owing to the low socio-economic status 
of Tweed, the proposal did not identify income from health funds as relevant income. 
 
In May 2008, the State Government acknowledged the proposal and advised they would 
not be responding to the offer. 
 
In June 2008, the Assistant Secretary Chronic Disease & Palliative Care Branch, Jennie 
Roe, responded on behalf of the Minister for Health and Ageing, Nicola Roxon and 
acknowledged receipt of the proposal, and that The Bright Side of Life hospice (sic) 
would be informed of appropriate developments.  Ms Cooper has advised that, to date, 
no further correspondence has been received on the matter from Minister Roxon's office. 
 
Council is advised that Ms Cooper and a representative from Tweed Palliative Support 
Inc, Meredith Dennis, have made considerable efforts to elicit response from relevant 
Ministers.  
 
In recent weeks Ms Cooper’s health has deteriorated.  Ms Cooper has advised she is no 
longer in a position to provide the lease option identified in the proposal.  In 
consequence, The Bright Side of Life has now been placed on the open market for $1.69 
million.   
 
Notwithstanding the change in lease component of the proposal, it is apparent that, 
should the Federal Government agree to purchase the existing purpose-built facility and 
fund ongoing costs as identified in the proposal, it would be a cost-effective way of 
providing a much-needed hospice in Tweed.  Owing to Ms Cooper’s ill health, Council is 
advised that all communication regarding this matter be referred to Ms Meredith Dennis, 
President, Tweed Palliative Support Inc. 
 
LEGAL/RESOURCE/FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
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UNDER SEPARATE COVER/FURTHER INFORMATION: 

To view any "non confidential" attachments listed below, access the meetings link on Council's website 
www.tweed.nsw.gov.au or visit Council's offices at Tweed Heads or Murwillumbah (from Friday the week 
before the meeting) or Council's libraries (from Monday the week of the meeting). 
 
Nil. 
 

 
 
 

http://www.tweed.nsw.gov.au/
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O19 [CNR-OC] Youth Activities at Banora Point  
 
ORIGIN: 

Community & Cultural Services 
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: 

Since December 2007 Council, through the Youth Development Officer, and in 
partnership with St Joseph’s Youth Service, has facilitated the running of activities titled 
the “Things to Do” at the Banora Point Community Centre after school and during school 
holidays.  
 
These activities have been funded by various small grants and thus there has been no 
capacity for forward planning or consolidation of a model of program delivery.  A 
consequence of the uncertain funding has been a fluctuation in staffing levels and a high 
turn over of staff.  This has resulted in reactive behaviour by the Young People.  
 
Since the end of July 2008 there has been consistency of staff and operations that has 
vastly improved youth participation levels.  
 
To build onto the success of this program, secure funding of $81,632 over a period of 
two years will facilitate a budgeted, realistic forward plan thus maximising program output 
to budget.  At the conclusion of two years, Council will then be positioned to accurately 
calculate future planning for Youth Activities across the Shire. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

That:-  
 
1. Council endorses expenditure of $81,632 from the Youth Support and 

Youth Development programs. 
 
2. Council contracts St Joseph’s Youth Service to continue delivering 

Youth Activities Programs at Banora Point Community Centre from 
November 2008 until 30 October 2010. 

 
3. At the conclusion of the contract period, the Banora Point activities 

are used as an assessment tool to ascertain the budget for further 
youth programming that respond to needs as identified in Council’s 
Social Plan and Management Plan (Access and Equity Statements). 
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REPORT: 

Purpose of the “Things to Do” Project: 
• To develop community activities at the Banora Point Community Centre through 

projects/programs that engages all Young People and their families.  
 
• To promote the Centre as a community facility that is user friendly, welcoming and 

appropriate for Young People to gather. 
 
• To encourage ownership of the Community Centre as a shared community resource 

for all participants and break down barriers between Young People and other 
sections of the Community particularly seniors. 

 
History of Program: 
27 February 2007 - Youth Crime Prevention Forum identifies Banora Point as a “hot 
spot” in relation to Young People and anti-social and/or offending behaviour.  Police, 
service providers and local residents identify contributing factors as: “fast growing”; 
known drug houses; lack of resources and services for Young People; low socio 
economic area; isolated and stressed families with no networks; hostility and fear of older 
residents; visibility of Young People and no sense of community or belonging by Young 
People. 
 
April – May 2007 - Young People who attended Youth Week activities were surveyed to 
identify needs and types of activities. Meetings were held with service providers, schools, 
police and other interested parties. And as a result several funding applications were 
submitted  
 
July 2007 - Tweed Shire Council receives $20,000 from CDSE to employ staff to 
commence the “Things to Do” project. 
 
5 November 2007 - Part time coordinator is employed for 20 hours a week on a fixed 
term contract until 2 May 2008. 
 
December 2007 – May 2008 - The participant numbers constantly rose from 3 to 5 on 
the first open afternoons in December 2007 to 18-20 in April 2008.  Early participants 
were mainly boys so a Girls Group commenced on the 13 February 2008.  The 
challenging behaviour of the Young People attending the centre necessitated introducing 
the guideline of three staff for each structured activity session as a risk management 
strategy.  From February 2008 St Joseph’s Youth Service provided a youth worker 
supporting the project one afternoon per week during school term, one day a week 
during school holidays and provided case management follow up and support for 
participants as required as well as sharing art and craft supplies some consumables.  
Volunteers were used when possible and additional budget for extra staffing outside the 
grant came from the Youth Development Officer's Youth Activities budget.  
 
2 May 2008 - Coordinator contract runs out, funds are exhausted.  The project is 
kept going but is fragmented and inconsistent.  The Young People’s behaviour becomes 
more challenging as staff changes and routine is broken.  
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Late May 2008 - Funding from multiple sources including $10,000 from Council is 
acquired and Council contracts St Joseph’s Youth Service to deliver the program until 
November 2008.  
 
June – July 2008 - Due to staffing issues the program is again erratic with high turn-over 
of staff multiple complaints from Young People, staff and community members are 
received.  Numbers drop dramatically, anti-social behaviour escalates in and around the 
Centre.  Graffiti around the Centre targets the Centre and mud is thrown at windows on 
two occasions.   
 
July – November 2008 - Staffing is stable and Young People are actively involved in the 
planning and are starting to share responsibility for respectful behaviour.  Structured 
group activities are run Monday and Wednesday and the skate equipment is put out on 
Thursday between 2.30pm and 5.30pm.  During the school holidays 2 days of in-Centre 
sessions are run as well as excursions.   658 Young People between the ages of 12 
and 16 have attended the Centre during this time.  The weekly average for the last 
12 weeks has been 48.25 per week. 
 
Conclusions: 
• Participation levels have proven the need for youth activities in the area.  Young 

People are willing to plan and organise activities when the program is stable and they 
have a sense of ownership and pride in the space. 

 
• Stable, suitable staff, negotiated guidelines and routines are essential to address 

challenging behaviour. 
 
• Ownership of the space assists with damage and antisocial behaviour.  On Friday, 7 

November 2008, a lot of damage was done to buildings in the area including broken 
windows at the Centre.  Approximately twenty (20) young people were spoken to by 
the Police and security, none of whom attend activities at the Centre.   

 
Rationale for continuation of existing partnership:  
• St Joseph's Youth Service is a legal entity.  They are a registered charity and not for 

profit that has operated a Supported Accommodation Assistance Program (SAAP) 
funded service for about 25 years across the Shire.  They work with Young People 
aged 13 to 25, providing a range of Supported Accommodation options and outreach 
services. 
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• The reason we have only sought prices from one provider is because it is an ongoing 
partnership. Since the beginning of the program, St Joseph's Youth Service has 
contributed both staffing support to a minimum of one Youth Worker once a week for 
at least 5 hours.  They also provide follow-up case management for young people 
requiring ongoing support; mentoring support and professional development for the 
coordinator, as well as food for afternoon tea for the Young People and contribute to 
resources like art supplies.  For the last 11 months of partnership, they have not 
taken any administration component out of the bits and pieces of funding.  The 
program has never been funded to a level to be able to function without the "in kind 
support".  Other service providers who work with Young People either do not have the 
capacity or mandate to work with the challenging demographic who attend the Centre 
and offer the "in kind" support.  The two year proposal of $81,632 is not sufficient 
funding to deliver the program without the "in kind" support although it does contain 
10% administration.  The full administration cost is estimated at $20,000 per year. 

 
Future Direction 
The funding provided for in this report will support the program until 30 October 2010.  At 
the conclusion of this, Council and other potential funding partners will need to assess 
and consider its future. 
 
LEGAL/RESOURCE/FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
The budget allocation of $81,632 will come from existing funds in the Social Works 
Program as follows: A2386 Youth Support ($66,604) and A1513 Youth Transport 
($15,028). 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
UNDER SEPARATE COVER/FURTHER INFORMATION: 

To view any "non confidential" attachments listed below, access the meetings link on Council's website 
www.tweed.nsw.gov.au or visit Council's offices at Tweed Heads or Murwillumbah (from Friday the week 
before the meeting) or Council's libraries (from Monday the week of the meeting). 
 
1. Copy of Agreement (DW 1929933) 
 

 
 
 

http://www.tweed.nsw.gov.au/
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O20 [CNR-OC] Waste Management Contracts  
 
ORIGIN: 

Waste 
 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: 

Council’s current contract for the Provision of Waste Management Services expires on 
30 November 2009.  In order to provide adequate lead in time, Council needs to 
commence the tender process for new Waste Management Contracts. 
 
Council’s Domestic Solid Waste Management Strategy outlines 35 recommendations 
which build upon Council's commitment to best practice waste management, with a 
strong emphasis on resource recovery and recycling.  Quadro Australia was engaged in 
October 2007 to assist Council in developing contract documents to meet the 
recommendations of the Strategy, Council’s needs, and community expectations. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

That Council commences the tender process and advertises separate 
contracts for:- 
 
1. Collection of Municipal Solid Waste, Collection and Processing of 

Recyclables, Collection of Organics, Collection of Bulky Wastes and 
Collection of Public Place Bins. 

 
2. Management of Stotts Creek Landfill Facility. 
 
3. Provision of Greenwaste Processing and Marketing Services. 
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REPORT: 

Council’s current contract for the Provision of Waste Management Services is due to 
expire on 30 November 2009.  This Contract allows for the kerbside collection of 
domestic waste, recyclables, and green organics, park and litter bin collection, and also 
the landfill and recycling operations at Stotts Creek Landfill.  The contract also covers 
nightsoil collection services, chemical closet services, septic tank effluent, and hazmat 
container collection.  In order to develop new contract documents it was pertinent to 
develop a waste management strategy for domestic solid waste in the Tweed Shire. 
 
Waste Management Strategy 
The Domestic Solid Waste Management Strategy January 2007 provided 35 
recommendations after extensive quantitative and qualitative research.  Four required 
adoption by Council, and on 22 June 2007 it was resolved to:- 
 
1. Introduce a new fully co-mingled recycling service in a 240 litre bin collected 

fortnightly to all residents receiving a waste collection service commencing on 1 
December 2009. 

 
2. Extend the current garden waste collection service to single households in urban 

areas in a 240 Litre bin collected fortnightly if requested by the individual residents, 
commencing on 1 December 2009. 

 
3. Offer the garden waste collection service to medium and high density dwellings if 

requested by individual management committees. 
 
4. Offer residents a 140 Litre bin as the Standard Service with the option of a 

differential service rate for an 80 Litre or 240 litre bin in the interests of social equity.  
The price differential for these three options will be assessed once the tender for 
the Domestic Waste Services is finalised, commencing on or around 1 December 
2009. 

 
Of the remaining recommendations, many build upon Council's commitment to best 
practice waste management, with a strong emphasis on resource recovery and recycling. 
A significant number have already been implemented. 
 
Council engaged Quadro Australia to assist in the development of new contract 
documents based on the Department of Environment & Climate Change model contract. 
The contract documents were developed to meet the recommendations of the Strategy, 
Council’s needs, and community expectations.  The contracts aim to achieve a high 
standard of performance in the provision of the services by the contractor using best 
practice methods and systems. 
 
Contract Development 
 
Collection of Municipal Solid Waste, Collection and Processing of Recyclables, 
Collection of Organics, Collection of Bulky Wastes and Collection of Public Place 
Bins 
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The contract term is for seven years to collect municipal solid waste, recyclables, 
organics, bi-annual hard rubbish clean up materials, and street/park litter bins, and take 
the materials to the Stotts Creek Landfill.  The contract also incorporates the processing 
of recyclables, meaning the contractor is responsible for marketing the recyclables to a 
recycling processor, or processing the recyclables themselves.  The contractor must 
provide Council with adequate evidence that the recyclables are being used for 
maximum beneficial ruse purposes. 
 
The contract has a number of environmental credentials such as ensuring the collection 
vehicles meet Clean Fleet emissions standards.  The mobile garbage bins must be made 
out of (a percentage) of recycled plastics. 
 
There are stringent key performance indicators to minimise missed services and early 
starts (noise complaints), while reporting criteria will ensure Council is kept fully 
informed. 
 
Management of Stotts Creek Landfill Facilities 
 
Council’s current operation at Stotts Creek Landfill has approximately three years of life 
remaining, with an estimated end of life approximately 2011.  It is with this in mind that 
the contract for Management of Stotts Creek Landfill Facilities has been drafted as a one 
year period, with the option to extend for a further one year at the absolute discretion of 
Council.  This enables Council to award a contract with a life to coincide with the life of 
the landfill.  
 
Council staff are currently facilitating an Environmental Assessment for a new quarry and 
landfill development at an adjacent site to the current Stotts Creek Landfill.  The approval 
process, which commenced with a project meeting in November 2007, is complex and 
timely.  It is not uncommon for this process to take upwards of two years.  This draft 
contract will allow for the approval, management plan, and environmental protection 
licence to be sought for the new landfill. 
 
The contract has strict performance criteria to manage environmental performance, and 
includes the continuation of buy back centre (tip shop) operations. 
 
Council, through a separate long term contract with LMS, retains the gas to energy 
infrastructure, which produces enough electricity from the garbage to power 400 homes 
each year. 
 
Provision of Greenwaste Processing and Marketing Services 
 
This contract aims to recover all green organics collected from the fortnightly kerbside 
collection and the green organic material dropped off at Stotts Creek Landfill.  The 
contract term is for seven years.  The location of the contract is at a designated area on 
Stotts Creek Landfill site.  The contractor will be paid a determined rate per tonne of 
processed green organic material leaving the Stotts Creek Landfill site. 
 
The key performance indicators will ensure beneficial reuse, and minimise odour and 
litter. 
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LEGAL/RESOURCE/FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Managed through the Waste Fund, delivered by the Waste Management Unit. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
UNDER SEPARATE COVER: 

Nil. 
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O21 [CNR-OC] Waste Management Charges  
 
ORIGIN: 

Waste 
 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: 

Council at its meeting of 2 September 2008 resolved as follows:- 
 

RESOLVED that in accordance with Section 610F(1)(3) of the Local Government 
Act 1993, the proposed fee of $160/tonne to dispose of asbestos contaminated 
material received from outside Tweed Shire boundaries be placed on public 
exhibition for 28 days. 

 
The proposed fee has been advertised for 28 days and no objections received, therefore 
it is recommended that the proposed fee of $160/tonne to dispose of asbestos 
contaminated material received from outside Tweed Shire boundaries be adopted. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

That Council adopts the disposal fee of $160/tonne to dispose of asbestos 
contaminated material received from outside Tweed Shire boundaries at 
Stotts Creek Landfill. 



 
OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING DATE:  TUESDAY 18 NOVEMBER 2008 

 
 

 
PAGE 182 

 
REPORT: 

Council at its meeting of 2 September 2008 resolved as follows:- 
 

RESOLVED that in accordance with Section 610F(1)(3) of the Local Government 
Act 1993, the proposed fee of $160/tonne to dispose of asbestos contaminated 
material received from outside Tweed Shire boundaries be placed on public 
exhibition for 28 days. 

 
The proposed fee has been advertised for 28 days and no objections received, therefore 
it is recommended that the proposed fee of $160/tonne to dispose of asbestos 
contaminated material received from outside Tweed Shire boundaries be adopted. 
 
LEGAL/RESOURCE/FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Minimal. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Nil. 
 
UNDER SEPARATE COVER/FURTHER INFORMATION: 

To view any "non confidential" attachments listed below, access the meetings link on Council's website 
www.tweed.nsw.gov.au or visit Council's offices at Tweed Heads or Murwillumbah (from Friday the week 
before the meeting) or Council's libraries (from Monday the week of the meeting). 
 
Nil. 
 

 
 
 

http://www.tweed.nsw.gov.au/
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O22 [CNR-OC] Request for "In Kind" Support/Waive Fee  
 
ORIGIN: 

Community & Cultural Services 
 
SUMMARY OF REPORT: 

Council has received requests from various organisations asking that Council provides 
in-kind support/waives the fees for room hire.  Details of the requests are reproduced in 
the body of this report. 
 
In accordance with Section 356 of the Local Government Act 1993 - Donations, Council 
resolved on 6 October 2004 that:- 
 

"…. in future, all donations made by Council, whether in cash or in kind, be made 
by way of a resolution of Council." 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

That Council:- 
 
1. With reference to the request from The Tweed Hospital, provides the 

Tweed Heads Civic Centre Auditorium free of charge for the 
Volunteers' Christmas Party on 12 December 2008, and that Council's 
support is recognised with the following acknowledgement "This 
programme has been supported by Tweed Shire Council". 

 
2. With reference to the request from The Tweed Hospital, provides the 

Tweed Heads Civic Centre Auditorium free of charge for the 
Remembrance Service on 20 November 2008, and that Council's 
support is recognised with the following acknowledgement "This 
programme has been supported by Tweed Shire Council". 
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REPORT: 

Council has received requests from various organisations asking that Council provides 
in-kind support/waives the fees for room hire.  Details of the requests are reproduced as 
follows:- 
 

Organisation 
Name 

Request Est $ 
Amount 

of 
Waiver 

Recommendation Meet 
Guidelines? 

The Tweed 
Hospital, North 
Coast Area Health 
Service 

Request fee be waived 
for hire of Tweed 
Heads Civic Centre 
Auditorium for the 
Volunteers' Christmas 
Party on 12 December 
2008. 

$347 That the fee of $347 be 
waived. 

Yes. 

The Tweed 
Hospital, North 
Coast Area Health 
Service 

Request fee be waived 
for hire of Tweed 
Heads Civic Centre 
Auditorium for the 
Remembrance Service 
on 20 November 2008. 

$191.50 That the fee of $191.50 
be waived. 

Yes 

 
LEGAL/RESOURCE/FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Should requests be approved for the waiving of fees for room hire, the income for the 
meeting room will be impacted by the amount of the fee reduction. 
 
Should requests for "in kind" support be approved, this will impact on the costing of 
Council's involvement in the activity. 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
 
In considering this request, reference should be made to:- 
 
Festivals Policy. 
Donations Policy. 
Guidelines for Fee Reduction, Auditoriums, Meeting Rooms and Halls. 
 
UNDER SEPARATE COVER/FURTHER INFORMATION: 

To view any "non confidential" attachments listed below, access the meetings link on Council's website 
www.tweed.nsw.gov.au or visit Council's offices at Tweed Heads or Murwillumbah (from Friday the week 
before the meeting) or Council's libraries (from Monday the week of the meeting). 
 
1. The Tweed Hospital, North Coast Area Health Service (DW 1921713) 
2. The Tweed Hospital, North Coast Area Health Service (DW 1921714) 

 

http://www.tweed.nsw.gov.au/
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